
EXHIBIT C-1 

rotal 

Ge ernruntal 

Furd 	 Funds 

S 	496,323 

	

468,041 	5,109,681 

	

49,884 	973,635 
125,437 
540,514 

3,398 
15,641 

6,107,937 
"??,703 

517,925 S 13,394,769 

	

7,000 $ 	537,029 
39,142 

5,929 

	

37,632 	2,346,426 
164,283 
177,394 
171,837 

	

44,632 	3.442,040 

378,880 

378,880 

	

473,793 	473,293 
4,548.803 

198,465 
-7)203 

4,331,085 

	

473,293 	9,573,849 

517,925 S 13,394,769 
_ - - 
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EXHIBIT C-2 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
therefore are not reported in governmental funds In addition, long-terrn liabilities, 
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and, 
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including the 
beginning balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debt in the 
governmental activities is to decrease net position. 

Current year capital outlays and long-terrn debt principal payments are expenditures 
in the fund financial statements,but they should be shown as increases in capital 
assets and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. 
The net effect of including the 2018 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to 
increase net position. 

This fiscal year required that the City report their net pension liability in the 
Government Wide Statement of Net Position. The iterns reported as a result of this 
implementation included a net pension liability of Sl48,390, a Deferred Resource 
Outflow of $411,941 and a Deferred Resource Inflow of $321,069. The net effect of 
these was to decrease the ending net position by $57,518. 

9,573,849 

(17,529,317) 

3,928,560 

(57,518) 

The City implemented GASB 75 reporting requirements for the OPEB benefit plan 
through TNIRS. Since this is the first year of implementation;  a prior period 
adjustrnent had to be made in the arnount of (S90,575). The implementation resulted 
in an OPEB liability of S110,020 and a deferred outflow of $11,81l. This resulted in 
a difference between the ending fund balance and the ending net position of 
($98,209). 

The 2018 depreciation expense increases accurnulated depreciation. The net effect 
of the current yeaCs depreciation is to decrease net position 

Various other reclassifications and elirninations are necessary to convert from the 
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include 
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, eliminating interfund transactions, and 
recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The 
net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to increase net position. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

(98,209) 

(929,773) 

282,429 

(4,829,979) 

The notes to the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

General 

und 

Capital 

Projects 

Fund 

Debt 

Serv ice 

Fund 

REVENUES 

Property 'Ines S 	3 130.623 S S 	2 219,955 

Genera; Sales and Use Taxes 480,798 

Franchise Tax 467.578 

Other Ta \es 7,426 

Licenses and Permits 572.655 

Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 103,128 24-1,1 l 0 

Charges for Services 867,520 

Fines 106,088 

Investment Earnings 66,250 129.392 11,679 

Rents and Royalties 122.815 

Contributions & Donations nom Private Sources 45.420 

Other Revenue 170,661 

Total Rel. enuc3 6.1-10,962 373.502 2,231.634 

EXPENDI URES: 

Current 

Administration 454.536 

Non Departmental 71.399 

Development Services 509,755 

Finance 197,721 

Human Resources 96,966 

Municipal Court 161,5(,1 

City Sacretar) 114.660 

City Attorney 286 

Poke.: Dopartment 2,060,523 

Dispatchora 347.049 

Ps.bhc Wriiks MIUts 978,123 

Sohd 	atte 627,364 

1361111,1g Mollnenallec 34,C44 

Reercation 107,145 

Av;ition 217,354 

Library 1 74 508 

Cult are and Rccieation, 

Park, 122.62,  

Isvirtsm 

Debt SeR ice 

Principal on Debi 15,861 1.231.0,4 

interest on Dein 506 1 329,-132 

Other Debt Service 3 500 

Cauita Outla 

C arnal Outlay 2.384 757 

Total EApenditui es 6,202.192 2 38-1 757 2 569.072 

Excess (Deficienc)) of Re‘,:oues Ow:A-  (Under) (151.230) (2 (111.2551 (337.438) 
EApenditurcs 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ( USES). 

Non-Current Loans 122.188 

Dam; fers In 1,507_836 501) 000 

Traniferi Out ( \ 567 8861 

Iota( Other Financing SollIces t t .ses) 1,122,188 500.000 

Net Change in Fund Balances 970 958 (2.011.255) 167.562 

Fund Balance - October 1 (Bcp_innina) 3,382,330 6 560 058 35,903 

Fund Balance - Septembei 30 (Endirko 4.353 288 S 	4.548,803 S 	193,465 

The notes to the financial staternents are an inteaial part of this statement. 
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EXIIIBI1 C-3 

Total 

Hotel 	Governmental 

Fund 	 Funds 

	

- 	S 	5 350.578 
480.798 
467 578 

	

127,269 	 13 1.695 
572.655 
3-17,238 
867 320 
106,088 

	

7,790 	 215,111 
122,815 
45,420 

170 661 

8,581,157 

454 536 
71 399 

509,755 
197,721 

96,966 
161.561 
114,669 

286 
2,060,523 

347.049 
978,123 
627,364 

38,04 1 
107 145 
217,554 
171 508 

!22.622 
64 (j92 

246,8ol 
1,320,988 

g jor) 

2,3S4,757 

11,319,113 

2,425,056) 

122.188 
2,907,886 
(507,836) 

1,622,188 

k806,768) 

402 326 	10,330,617 

173203 	$ 	9 573,S40 

135,059 

64 002 

64.092 

70,967 

70,967 
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EXHIBIT C-4 
CIT Y OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in 
thc fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets 
and reductions in long-term debt in the gowrnment-wide financial statements. The net 
effect of removing the 2018 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to increase 
the change in net position. 

Thc entries required by GASB 68 did require that some expenses on B-1 be adjusted. 
Total credits to expenses were $263,967 and total debits to expenses were $316,545. 
The net effect on the change in net position on Exhibit B-1 is a decrease of $52,578. 

The implementation of GASB 75 to report the TMRS OPEB plan resulted in a prior 
period adjustment in the amount of (S90,575). The changes in the ending net position 
as a result of reporting the OPEB items was a decrease in net position in the amount of 
$7,634. 

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not 
require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's 
depreciation is to deciease the change in net position. 

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the 
modified accival basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include 
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current }ear revenue to show the 
revenue earned from the current year's tax levy, eliminating interfund transactions, and 
recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The net 
effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to decrease the change in net 
position. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

(806.768) 

3,928,560 

(52,578) 

(7,634) 

(929,773) 

(-136,415) 

1,695.392 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

20 



EXHIBIT D-1 (Cont'd) 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Bdsiness-Type 	- Enteipnse Finds 

Golf 

Cows:2 

Fund 

Utilti 

Fund 

Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 	 S 	1,000 $ 	89-1,377 $ 	895,377 

Investments - Current _ 747.1 77 747,177 

Restricted Assets - Current' 
Restricted Asset - Irnpact Fees - 7,120,877 2,470,827 

Accounts Receivable (Net) 26.391 1,173,629 1,200.020 

Due from Other Funds 4,281,175 4,281,175 

Inventories 21,801 157,816 179,617 

Prepaid Items 5,141 8,186 13,327 

Total Current Assets 54,333 9,178,137 9,132,470 

Noncurrent Assets. 
Capital Assets: 

Land Purchase and Improvements 935.399 2,336,444 3.271,8-13  

Buildinos 860.822 405,538 l.266,360 

Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings (126.-171) (256,479) (382,950) 

Improvements other than Buildings 1,569,061 60.178,356 61,7-17.417 

Accurnuated Depreciation - Other Improvements (483,868) (16.581,498) (17 065_366) 

Furniture and Equipment 2.058,770 _ 2523,941 4,582,711 

Accumulated Depreciation - Furniture & Equipment (1,612.423) (2.019,754) (3.632,177) 

Construction in Progress 6,787.881 6,787,881 

Total Noncurrent Assets 3,201.290 53,374 429 56 575,719 

Total Assets 3 255,623 62.552,566 65,808,189 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

DefeiTed Outflow Related to Pens:on Plan 77.321 164,298 2-11.619 

Deferred Resource Outflow Related to OPEB 1,800 6 235 3,085 

Total Merred OutflolAs of Resources 79.121 170 583 249.704 

The notes to the financial stateinents are an integral part of this staternent. 



EXHIBIT D-1 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Business-Type Activities - Enteiptis.; Fond; 

Golf 

Course 

Fund 

t 	til ity 

Fund 

Total 

Enterp: Ise 

Funds 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 402 55.480 55,882 
Wages and Salaries Payable 25,470 35,176 60,646 
Compensated Absences Payable -18.169 131,248 179,417 
Due to Other Funds 2.475.263 2,475,263 
Unearned Revenues - 9,4/2 9,471 
Notes Payable - CulTent 54,230 54,230 
Other Current Liabilities - 234.900 234.900 

Total Current Liabilities 2,603,534 466.226 3 069.760 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Othei Long Term Debt Payable - Noncurrent 331,196 331.196 
Net Pension Liability 47,806 64,983 112,789 
Net OPEB Liability 16,764 58,547 75.311 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 395,766 123.530 519,296 

Total Liabilities 2,999,300 589,756 3.589,056 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflow Related to Pension Plan 38,718 129,632 168,400 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 38,718 129,682 168.400 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,815,864 53.374.-129 56,190.293 

Restricted for Capital Improvements 2,-111 0,817 2,420.827 

Unrestricted Net Position (2.519,138 ) 6.208,-155 3.689,317 

Total Net Posiuon 

 

S 	62,003.7! I S 	62.300.437  

       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
77 



'd) 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 	

EXHIBIT D-2 (Cont 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER  30, 2018 
Susiness-Th.pe  Acii 	iiie5 - EnWIn se Funds 

Golf 
Course 
Fund 

Utility 
Fund 

Iotal 
Enterprise 

Funds 

OPERATING REVENUES• 

Chaiges for Services Water Services S S 	5,076,417 S 	5,076,417 
Charges for Services Sewerage Service - 3,969,106 3,969,106 
Charges for Services Golf Course 362,799 - 362,799 
Rents and Royalties 113.165 - 113,165 
Other Revenue 226,876 85,310 312,186 

Total Operating Revenues 702,840 9,130,833 9,833,673 

OPERATING EXPENSES, 

Utilities Adrninistration 

Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 92,034 92,034 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 42,396 42,396 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 10,000 10,000 
Other Operating Costs 40,063 40,063 
Supplies 20,945 20,945 

Total Utilities Administration 205,438 205,438 

Water Services 

Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 423,817 423,817 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 199,008 199,008 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 48,487 48,487 
Purchased Property Services - 116,168 116,168 
Other Operating Costs 52,019 52,019 
Supplies 596,830 596,830 

Total Water Services - 1,436,329 1,436,329 

Water Plant 

Personnel Services - Salm ies and Wages - 98,417 98,417 
Personnel Serv ices - Employee Benefits 40,153 40,153 
Purchased Professional & lechnical Services 30,426 30,426 
Purchased Property Services - 75,228 75,228 
Other Operating Costs 207.749 207,749 
Supplies 175,850 175,850 

Total Water Plant - 627,823 627,823 

Wastewater Services 

Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 159,225 159,225 
l'ersonnel Services - Employee Benefits - 71,704 71,704 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services - 10,882 10,882 
Purchased Property Services - 98,382 98,382 
Other Operating Costs 8,926 8,926 
Supplies 569,124 569,124 

Total Wastewater Services 918,243 918,243 

Wastevvater Plant 

Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages - 118,509 118,509 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 47,492 47,492 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 27,301 27,301 
Purchased Property Services - 80,986 80,986 
Other Operating Costs - 5,268 5,268 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



EXHIBIT D-2 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 
Busincss-Tpe ActIslues - Ervelprise Func's 

Ciolf 
Coui se 
Fund 

rota] 
Uulity 	Enterp Ise 
l'urd 	Funds 

Supplies 
Total Wastewater Plant 

33,791 

312,847 

33,791 

312,847 

Golf Course 
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 433,500 433,500 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 196,442 196,442 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 57,764 57,764 
Purchased Property Services 127,336 - 1 77,336 
Other Operating Costs 42,766 _ 42,766 
Supplies 218,779 218,779 

Total Golf Course 1,076,587 - 1,076,587 

Effluent Disposal 
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 136,769 136,769 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 61,791 61,791 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 2,867 2,867 
Purchased Property Services - 57,092 57,092 
Other Operating Costs 17,396 17,396 
Supplies - 7,255 7,255 

Total Effluent Disposal - 283,170 283,170 

Information Technology 
Personnel Sei vices - Salaries and Wages - 156,899 156,899 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits - 57.671 57,671 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services - 33,201 33,201 
Purchased Property Services 10S.442 108,442 
Other Operating Costs 72,822 72,822 
Supplies - 235 735 
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 19,308 19,308 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits - 9,126 9,126 
Other Operating Costs - 48,187 48,187 
Supphes 4 1 9 419 
Pci s,-)nnel Services - Sal:it les and Wages 19,308 19,308 
Personnel Set-% ices - Employee Benefits - 8,658 8,658 
Other Operating Costs 92,429 92,429 
Supp!ies 274 274 

Total Information Technology 626,979 626,979 

Public Works Adrnin 
Peisonnel Services - Salaries and Wages 146,100 146,100 
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 50,747 50,747 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 131,558 131,558 
Other Operating Costs l 7,371 17,371 
Supplies 1,698 1,698 

Total Public Works Admin - 347,474 347,474 

Depreciation 145,466 1,546,417 1,691,883 

Total Operating Expenses 1,222,053 6,304,720 7,526,773 

Operating Incorne (Loss) (519,213) 2,826,113 2,306,900 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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EXHIBIT D-2 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 
13,1511125S-f}pc Actp,ities - Efficrplisc Funds 

Golf 
Course 
Fund Fund 

Total 
Entet prise 

Funds 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Investment Earnings 31,869 31,869 
Interest Expense - Non-Opeiating (10,165) (16,006) (26,171) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (10,165) 15,863 5,698 

Incorne (Loss) Before Contributions & Transfers (529,378) 2,841.976 2,312,598 

Capital Contributions 262,509 1,107,410 1,369,919 
Non-Operating Transfers In 500,000 500,000 
Transfers Out (Use) (2,000,000) (2,000,000) 

Change in Net Position 233,131 1,949,386 2,182,517 
Total Net Position - October 1 (Beginning) 77,396 60,102,524 60,179,920 
Prior Period Adjustment (13,801) (48,199) (62,000) 

Total Net Position - September 30 (Ending) $ 	296,726 $ 	62,003,711 S 	62,300,437 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT D-3 (Confd) 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Busircss- 	y pc Act,,ows 

Golf 

Course 

Fund 

Utilo) 

1. Lind 

Total 

Enti.n-pnie 

Funds 

Cash Flows frorn Operating, Activities• 

Cash Received from User Charges 369,684 S 	8,987,574 S 	9,357,258 

Cash Received from Assessments - Other 340,041 85,310 425,351 

Cash Payrnents to Employees for Services (623,470) (1,844,256) (2,467,726) 

Cash Payments for Suppliers (218.779) (1,405,267) (1,624,046) 

Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses (247,139) (2,051,592) (2,298,731) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating 
Activities (379,663) 3.771.769 3,392,106 

Cash Flows from Non-Caoital Financing Activities: 

Operating Transfer Out 500,000 (2,000,000) (1,500.000) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

Acquisition of Capital Assets (401,612) (1,083,964) (1,485,576) 

Capital Contributed by Other Funds 262,509 1,107,410 1,369.919 

Restricted Assets (1,100,146) (1,100,146) 

Loan Proceeds 20,033 20,033 

Capital Lease Proceeds -126,625 426,625 

Interest Paid (10,166) (16,006) (26.172) 

Loan Payrnents (481.965) (481,965) 

Capital Lease Payments (397,693) (397,693) 

Net Cash Provided by t Used for) Capital and 
Related Financing Activities (120,337) (1,554,638) (1 674 975) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 

Interest and Dividends on Investinents 31,865 31,865 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.48.996 248,996 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 1.000 887,503 888,508 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 1,000 1.136,501 1,137.504 
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EXHIBIT D-3 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Bailness-Ty1,e Achyttics 

Oolf 
Course 

Fund 
Uttlity 
Fund 

Total 
Enterpnse 

Funds 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided Bv (Used For) Operating Activities: 

Operating Income (Loss) 	 S (519,213) S 	2,826,113 $ 	2,306,900 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income 
To Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 145,466 1,546,417 1.691.883 

Effect of Increases and Decreases in Current 
Assets and Liabilities- 

Decrease (Increase) in Receivables 6.885 (57,949) (51,064) 

Decrease (Increase) in Inventories 4,402 4,402 

Decrease (Increase) in Due From Other Funds (639,322) (639,322) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 330 38,034 38,364 

Increase (Decrease) in Wages Payable (5,583) 4,070 (1,5)3) 
Increase (Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payable (1.981) (1,981) 
Increase (Deciease) in Compensated Absences 2.879 77,356 25,235 

Increase (Decrease) in Due To Other Funds (22,024) (22,(J24) 

Increase (Decrease) in Pension and OPEB Liability 9.176 32,050 41,226 

Net Cash Provided by (lise,d for) 
Operating Activities (379,663) S 	3 771,769 $ 	3,392.106 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
27 



EXHIBIT E-1 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Total 

Pension 

Trust Fund 

ASSETS 

Restricted Asset - Deferred Compensation Plan S 	782,874 

Total Assets 782,874 

LIABILITIES 

Due to Others 782,874 

Total Liabilities 782,874 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

NOTE I. SUMfv1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Lago Vista, Texas, have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and 

financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below: 

A. Reporting Entity 

In evaluating how to define the governrnent, for financial purposes, management has 

considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit 
in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement 14. 

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the concept of financial 

accountability. A primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that 

make up its legal entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if 

its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body and either it is able 
to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide 

specific financial benefits to, or to irnpose specific financial burdens on, the prirnary 

government. Based on the foregoing criteria, there were no component units identified that 

would require inclusion in this report. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and the Staternent of Activities are government-wide financial 

statements. They report information on all of the City of Lego Vista nonfiduciary activities 

with rnost of the interfund activities removed. Governmental activities include programs 

supported primarily by taxes, sales tax, franchise tax, municipal court fines, charges for 

services and other miscellaneous revenues. Business-type activities include operations that 

rely to a sign'ficant extent on fees and charges for services. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates how other people or entities that participate in 

prograrns the City operates have shared in the payrnent of the direct costs. The "charges for 

services" column includes payments rnade by parties that purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods or services provided by a given function or segment of the City. 

Interfund activities between governmental funds appear as due to/due frorns on the 

Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and as other resources and other uses on the 

governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. All 
interfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on the government-wide 

statements. Interfund activities between governmental funds and fiduciary funds remain as 
due to/due froms on the government-wide Statement of Activities. 

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of 

operations for two fund categories - governmental and proprietary. The City considers some 
governmental funds major and reports their financial condition and results of operations in a 

separate column. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses frorn nonoperating items. 

Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering 

goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All other 

revenues and expenses are nonoperating. 
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C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus 

and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 

recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows 

Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and 

similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement 

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only 

current assets, current liabilities and fund balances are included on the balance sheet. 

Operating statements of these funds present net increases and decreases in current assets 

(i.e. revenues and other financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses). 

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in 

which they become both measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the 

accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured 

interest and principal on long-term debt, which is recognized when due. The expenditures 

related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are recognized when the 

obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The 

City considers all revenues available if they are collectible within 60 days after year end. 

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes, franchise taxes and user 

charges. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under 

the "susceptible to accrual" concept; that is, when they are both measurable and available. 

The City considers them "available" if they will be collected within 60 days of the end of the 

fiscal year. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because 

they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded 

as earned, since they are both measurable and available. 

Grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the 

provisions of the grant. Accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as 

deferred revenues until related and authorized expenditures have been made. If balances 

have not been expended by the end of the project period, grantors some times require the 

City to refund all or part of the unused amount. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 

1989, generally are followed m both the governmental-wide and proprietary fund financial 

statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of 

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of 

following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise 

funds, subject to this same limitation. 	The City has elected not to follow Financial 

Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") statements and interpretations issued after November 

30, 1989 for its business-type and enterprise fund activities. 

D. Fund Accounting 

The City reports the following nlajor governmental funds: 

1. The General Fund - The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It 

accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

2. Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the 

accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt 

principal and interest. 
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3. 	Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the financial resources 

used for acquisition of major capital improvements. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type(s): 

Governmental Funds: 

1. 	Special Revenue Funds - The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the 

proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted to expenditures for 

specified purposes, 

Proprietary Fund: 

1 . 	Enterprise Funds — The Utility Fund and Golf Course Fund are operated as 

Enterprise Funds. 

E. 	Other Accounting Policies 

1. 	In the government-wide financial statements in the fund financial statements, 

long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 

applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund 

type statement of net position. 	Bond premiums and discounts, as well as 

issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 

effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 

premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 

amortized over the terrn of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognized bond 

premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current 

period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 

Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 

while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance 

costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 

reported as debt service expenditures 

2 	The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to Pe cash on hand, demand 

deposits, and short-terrn investments with original maturities of three months or 

less from the date of acquisition 

3. Ali inventories are valued at cost using the weighted average cost method. The 

consumption rnethod is used to account for governmental fund type inventories. 

Under the consurnption method, inventories of governmental funds are recorded 

as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

4. Capital assets, which include land. buildings, furniture and equipment are reported 

in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 

government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as 

assets with an estirnated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are 

recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 

constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value 

at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 

asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for 

capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
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Buildings, furniture and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight 

line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 

Buildings 30-50 

Improvements 10-30 

Equipment 3-10 

Pursuant to GASB Statement Number 34, an extended period of deferral is 

available before the requirement to record and depreciate infrastructure assets 

(e.g., roads, bridges, and similar items) acquired before the implementation date 

becomes effective Therefore, infrastructure assets acquired prior to October 1, 

2001 have not yet been capitalized. 

5. 	Beginning with fiscal year end September 30, 2011, the City implemented GASB 

Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 

Definitions." 	This Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance 

categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a 

government's fund balances more transparent. 	The following classifications 

describe the relative strength of the spending constraints: 

• Non-spendable fund balance - amounts that are not in non-spendable form 

(such as inventory) or are required to be maintained intact 

• Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by 

their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of 

government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

• Committed fund balance - arnounts constrained to specific purposes by 

the City itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e. City 

Council). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any 

other purpose un)ess the City takes the same highest level action to 

remove or change the constraint. 

• Assigned fund balance - amounts the City intends to use for a specific 

purpose Intent can be expressed by the City Council or by an official or 

body to which the City Council delegates the authority. 

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose. 

Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund, 

The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance 

commitments by passage of an ordinance. 	Th;s Is typically done through 

adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is further 

indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund 

(such as for special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by the City 

Council through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific 

purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets, construction, debt service, or 

other purposes). 

6. 	Implementation of new GASB Accounting Standard: 

The City has implemented GASB Staternent No. 63, Financial Reporting of 

Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 
as well as the implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously 

Reported as Assets and Liabiliiies. Under GASB 63 and 65, amounts previously 

reported as deferred charges as a part of total assets and deferred amounts from 

refunded debt have been reported in a separate section as deferred outflows of 

resources and amounts previously reported as deferred revenue as a part of total 

liabilities have been reported in a separate section as deferred inflows of 

resources. 
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7. When the City incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or 

unrestricted assets, it uses the restricted assets first whenever they will have to 

be returned if they are not used. 

8. The original budget is adopted by the City Council prior to the beginning of the 

fiscal year through passaae of an ordinance. The budget includes proposed 

expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Budgeted amounts for expenditures from the various funds rnay not exceed the 
beginning balances of those funds plus the anticipated revenues for the fiscal 
year. The final amended budget has been presented in this report. 
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of each year. 

9. Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability or asset, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and 

pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas 
Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS's 
Fiduciary Net Position have been deterrnined on the same basis as they are 
reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the 
period that compensation is reported for the ernployee, which is when 
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when 

due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported 
at fair value 

10. Other Post-Employment Benefits. GASB 75 requires recognition of the Total 
OPEB Liability (TOL), deferred (inflows)/outflows of resources, and total OPEB 

expense on the face of the employer's financial statements. 	The TOL is 
calculated by the Systern's actuary in accordance with the provisions of GASB 

75. The OPEB expense and deferred iinflows)/outflows of resources related to 
OPEB, which are required to be reported by an employer, primarily result from 
changes in the components of the TOL. Most changes in the TOL will be 
included in OPEB expense in the period of the change. The City participates in 

the Texas Municipal Retirement System Supplemental Death Benefit fund. 

11. The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at tne date of the financial statements and the 
reported arrounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual 
results could differ from those estimates 

NOTE II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. 	Deposits and Investments 

The funds of the City must be deposited and invested under the terrns of a contract, contents 
of which are set out in the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved 
pledged securities for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank in an amount 
sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The 
pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar 
amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurance. 

At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $1,391,700 and the 
bank balance was $2,422,962. The City's cash deposits held at Security State Bank at 
September 30, 2018 and during the year ended September 30, 2018 were entirely covered 
by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City's agent bank in the City's name 

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific 
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provisions in the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of 

appropriate policies. Among other things, it requires the City to adopt, implement, and 

publicize an investment policy. That policy rnust address the following areas. (1) safety of 

principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable 

risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio 

investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated 

maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid 

solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) 

obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2) 

certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, 

(5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) rnutual funds, (8) investment pools, 

(9) guaranteed investment contracts, (10) and common trust funds. The Act also requires the 

City to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment practices as 

provided by the Act. The City is in substantial cornpliance with the requirements of the Act 

and with local policies. 

Temporary investments: 

Carrying 	 Market 	 FDIC 	Pledged 

Amount 	 Value 	Coverage 	Securities 

LOGIC 
	

$ 	13,902,775 	$ 	13,902,775 	$ 	- 0 - 	$ 	- 0 - 

Local government investment pools operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Ruse 2a7 

of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Local government investment pools use amortized 

cost rather than market value to report net position to compute share prices. Accordingly, 

the fair value of the position in these pools is the same as the value of the shares in each 

pool. 

Policies Governing Deposits and Investments 

In compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the City has adopted a deposit and 

investrnent policy. That policy does address the following risks: 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: This is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the City's 

deposits may not be returned to it. The City was not exposed to custodial credit risk since its 

deposits at year-end and during the year ended September 30, 2018 were covered by 

depository insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City's agent bank in the City's name. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments: This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 

counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 

securities that are in the possession of an outside party Investments are subject to custodial 

credit risk only if they are evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. 

Thus positions in external investment pools are not subject to custodial credit risk because 

they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. 

Other Credit Risk: There is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will 

not fulfill its obligations. To minimize credit risk, Logic Investment Pool invests only in 

investments authorized under the Public Funds Investment Act. Logic's portfolio has low 

rnarket (credit) risk due to restrictions on weighted average maturity and maximum maturity 

of any one investment The investrnent manager is required to maintain a stable $1.00 net 

position value and must take immediate action if the net position value of the portfolio falls 

below $.995 or rises above $1.005. 
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B. Property Taxes 

The city levies taxes on real property within the city on October 1 each year which is the lien 

date Such taxes become delinquent the following February 1. On January 1 of each year, a 

tax lien attaches to the property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties and interest 

ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they become due or 

past due and receivable within the current period. The Travis County Appraisal District 

appraises and collects taxes for the city. For the 2017 tax roll, the tax rate was $.3803 for 

maintenance and operations and $.2697 for interest and sinking. The total tax rate was $.65 

per $100 valuation and the total property valuation was $804,945,231. 

C. Court Fines and Fees Receivable 

In accordance with GASB Statement Number 34, the City has determined the amount of 

court fines and fees receivable to be $148,939. Based on historical collection rates for the 

various courts, the City has booked an allowance for uncollectible court fines and fees of 

$104,257, resulting in a net receivable of $44,682. 

D. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets represent cash that has been set aside for future payment of revenue bonds 

and capital improvements. A summary of restricted assets at September 30, 2018 appears 

below: 

General Fund- 

Park Land Fees 	 22,203 

Capital Projects Fund - 

Capital Acquisition and Improvement 

Projects 	 6,107,937 

Utility Fund- 

lrnpact Fees 	 2,420,827 

Pension Trust Fund- 

Deferred Compensation Plan 	 782,874 

Total Restricted Assets 	 $ 9,333,841 

E. Capital Asset Activity 

Changes in Governmental fixed assets during the year ended September 30, 2018 were as 
follows: 

G 	.er 1ms ntai As{ ‘.1153 

Be; rr:n1 

Ea'anr.1 Add.c,;rs Flata5-5, ; 

E,:rg 

Lard ' 052 235 3 1 ,355 135 

al .41 eel S Strews 13 0C2 129 :99 906 13 601.1 35 

Vaceralr s A EA.Ar-ent 29 0 9 '55 55. 152 523 

Aetel GC1,530 351 530 

.tarmure 	Fre,ree 95 623 35 523 

,recr 	wee= 5 591025 33.135 5,552 51`.. 

Cl'etrtre ?roe 	Prsiress 770 480 1,153,521 111015 1  523 385 
-arsts at 	C CM' 5 	25,715,244 	1 2 023 520 	$ 1'3 1'8 	3 27 521 345 

.e.ta Ass ...Med Dor:c.a.... f4 775,7021 .1 	3 52, 15.532 2291 

Ge.emmerta,  Acnoms 

Cjeva Assets err $ 	20,935 542 	1 1 	1'2 393 , 12 918 	5 21,937 7 ,7 

35 



F. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Capital asset activity for the Enterprise Funds for the year ended September 30, 2018, was 

as follows: 

Balance 

10,01,17 Additicrs rele ow; 

Balance 

09,30118 

Lard 5 	3,21).843 $ $ 3,27' ,843 

9....1:fings 978,696 280,562 1,259,253 

Imarca,,ernents 12.093,733 12,098,733 

Water Treatment Plant 7,715,030 7,715,030 

Covstructior in Progress 17,369,883 429,070 (10,770,130) 7,023,829 

Water and Sewer System 30,311,521 11,388,288 41,699,809 

Machinery & Equaarnert 4,589,941 458,208 (465,440) 4,582,709 

Torats $ 	76,335,653 $ 	12,556,128 $ 	111.235,570) $ 	77,656,211 

Accumulated Deprecia-lon (19,553,630) (1,691,883) 165,018 (21,080,495) 

FIxed Assets, Net $ 	56,782,023 $ 	10,864,245 $ 	(11,070,552) $ 	56,575.716 

G. Intangible Asset 

On December 3, 2012 the City purchased a 20 year public access to the school facilities from 
the Lago Vista Independent School District. The easement is being amortized over the 
contract period (20 years). The unamortized balance as of September 30, 2018 was 
$243,690. 

Chan_ges in Long-Term Debt 

A summary of changes in long-term debt follows: 

Go‘semmontal ,Actmmes 

8$4inning 

Balance A.1.1 tic,-Is Reiiremen:s 

5 sdiql 

5Yer-c2, 

Due Wrryn 

011,2; YCar 

Bonds Payao.$ 36,402.03G $ 1.231,000 $ 	35 17 	003 , 332.000 

T-remian cs 9ana, 1,699.599 98,984 1 320 616 

Compensated Absen.;es 314,141 52,516 366,657 

_oars People 369,464 122,188 491,652 

_errrr 	Deferred I. 0-15 or 

Ilef,"thrg 3 3rda 1341,2301 37,093 1304 1361 

.a^.s.cn L 	brl 422,232 273,842 '.1.9 3JJ  

e' ' 	2. 022 110 029 

Gaiernmental ActivIti 

Long-Tarn,  Dear 38,866,197 $ 234,724  $ 	2,132,571 $ 	37,092,536 $ 	1,332,000 

Loari Payable - 

Wate• & Sehar 451,332 $ 20,033 $ 	48',965 5 

Cacita Lea.cs - 

Goif CCLIPA! Fu'ld 

Je-lr Deere 71,248 204,010 99,000 179,258 3',464 

Yarnr,a 232,247 222 615 298,693 206.169 22,746 

Net Pensloe Liab,l,tj 305,75 4  192,965 112,789 

Net OPES L,aur,tj 75,311 75.311 

Susmess Tycr Activity 

Lang-Twin Deb( :24,181 $ 521,969 $ 	1.072,623 5 	573 527 S 	54.230 

TOTAL ACTIVITIES 39,990,378 $ 806,693 $ 	3,205 194 1 	37,666.063 $ 	1,436,230 
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Bonds Payable 

   

A detail of General Long-Term Debt is as follows: 

13,Panoo at 
3 ,39/18 

 

one Yoar 

    

SG A19,000 Constonotaon Tos tsml Utnued nk-ua. 
n,  Obimanor>, Ser pt. 2006 

Dato of lbSLIO Octobnr 5, 200 - 

into .... Rate 4 13% 

83.ans(.., Senn:mbar 30, 201/ 3 605.000 	 325 000 

02,00C.000 Combmobon Too ard Lomtorl °leder> Aevon...1 

Certif.:413o et Obl.eatoon. Sanas 2006 
D ,.n of basun July 3 2009 
interest Pate 3137% 

134.maa September 30. 2017 	 1177,000 	 98,000 

12,340 000 Gunn-a. 0b1.0..finn Refundino Banns Sanas 2009 
Dot.> al lusua 	 20  2005  
1ntorest Rota 3 30% 
al an., Salta-The, 30 2017 	 169 000 	 16'9,000 

04 539.000 Donorol 	 Lionelvf Sam,. 7011 
Dote of lsrues Demonsh, - 2011 
Iptoroof /lam 2 

1331.1not: Sap5onlim 30 7017 	 2,515,000 	 430,000 

97,655,000 Cninbtnabon Tn ant: Lanacul P.cdna Revonuc 

Cortifr3otes 	01:110.stren. Serms 2011 

Date of itae. Auf.ust 19 7014 

In•orest Pate 2 0-4 50% 
Balance. September 30 2017 	 5 000 	 30.001 

96 955,000 Gonara Obl.aatou.Ifiefundo.n Gond., Sanas 2() Tb 

Dale at Rout: Jaimory A, 2015 
interest A sto 2 0 4 0% 

	

Sop(ainb3r 33, 701/ 	 G A1') 000 	 55,000 

37,725 000 Combination Tax ono Lao foci P acids 9.-von...r. 
CatTl ctsp,  of 01:1135bon. Stmt.. 7011 

D ii of ..sstie tt.i.ire I 16. 201/ 
Ipt,.-ost Rote 3 0 - 	0^, 

Onlonat, Scatnrsbor 30, 201/ 	 7.570.030 	 220.000 

11.810.000 Gem•rm Oolinmon Refund no Bond., St rm.. 2013A 
Cr Ito a I ;sue Oazur,litef 01. 2018 
In•e•o, Pmfa 2 0-4 0% 

	

311..mme Sentemar 30 7017 	 1 799,000 	 15 01)0 

(.3,8 	C00 Zarl., 	 Ftoft 	Sop P. S. ,To 20 GS 
Date..., 	00,01711car 0 I 701t. 

lat. 1 27-3 7395. 

	

311 -oico Sontag>, 30 2017 	 1,p45 t1C.0 	 .30.000 

1,1 01A 	• l'DS PAYA 	 .T 	71 200 	 1 387 000 

The annual requirements to amortize the obhgation outstanding at September 30, 2018 follow: 

General Lonq-Term Debt  
Seot,4-nber 30, 	 PrincTal 	 Interest 	 Tctal 

2019 	$ 	1,382,000 	 1,291,694 $ 	2,673,694 

2020 	 1,442,000 	 1,245,029 	 2,687,029 

2021 	 1,491,000 	 1,195,816 	 2,686 816 

2022 	 1,531,000 	 1,145,634 	 2,676,634 

2023 	 1,585,000 	 1,094,361 	 2,679 361 

2024-2028 	 3,765,000 	 4,524,036 	 13,289,036 

2029-2033 	 10,270,000 	 2,717,796 	 12,987,796 

2034-2038 	 6,195,000 	 857,099 	 7.052,099 

2039-2043 	 1,285,000 	 368,656 	 1,653.656 

2044 2048 	 1,225,000 	 100,261 	 1,325,261 

Totals 	 35,171,000 $ 	14,540,382 $ 	49,711,382 
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J. Capitalized Leases 

Capital lease obligations at Septernber 30, 2018, are composed of the following: 

Balance at 

9/30/18 

Golf Course Fund 

Lease payable to John Deere Financial for 

equipment; 24 monthly installments of $9,447 

including principal and interest through 

principal and interest through October 1, 

2023; interest at 3.75 

Leases payable to Yamaha for Golf Carts; 

16 monthly installments of $6,360 including 

principal and interest through December 15, 2021; 

interest at 4.2%. 1 final payment of $133,575. 

$ 	179,258 

206,169 

  

Total 	 $ 385,427 

Future minimum lease payments under the lease along with the present value of the minimum 

lease payrnents as of September 30, 2018: 

Year Ended September 30, 

Long-Term 

Obligations 

2019 $ 	63,226 

2020 63,226 

2021 63,226 

2022 172,779 

2023 37,737 

2024-2028 9,447 

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 	409,691 

Less Arnount Representing interest 24,264 

Present Value of Lease Payments $ 	385,427 

K. Risk Management 

Tne City of Lago Vista is exposed to various risks of loss relating to general liability, 

accidental loss of real and personal property, damage to assets, errors and omissions, acts of 

God and personnel risks which relate to workers compensation. 

The City contracts with the Texas Municipal League iTML) to provide insurance coverage for 

identified risks. TML is a multi-government group that provides for a combination of modified 

self-insurance and stop-loss coverage. Contributions are sent annually to TML, Liability by 

the City is generally limited to the contributed amounts. Contributions for the year ended 

September 30, 2018 were $194,193. 
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L. 	Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The City of Lago Vista, Texas participates as one of 883 plans in the nontraditional, Joint 

contributory, hybrid defined benefit pension plan administe,ed by the Texas Municipal 

Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and 

administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code 

(the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in 

the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the 

System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and 

consent of the Senate. appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of 

Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of 

the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial 

report (CAFR) that can be obtained at 14/ww.tmrs.com.  

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS. 

Benefits Provided  

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits Benefit provisions are adopted by 

the governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing 
TMRS 

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the ernployee's contributions, with 

interest, and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an 

annuity. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments 

options Mernbers may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lurnp Surn 

Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 

75% of the member's deposits and interest. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options 

available in tne state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows: 

Plan Year 2016 Plan Year 2017 

Employee Deposit Rate: 6% 6% 

Matching Ratio (City to Employee) 2 	- 	l 2 - 1 

Years required for Vesting 5 5 

Service retirernent eligibility 

(expressed as age/years of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20 

Updated Service Credit 

100% Repeating, 

Transfers 

100% Repeating, 

Transfers 

Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI 
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Employees covered by benefit terms. 
At the December 31, 201 7 valuation and rneasurement date, the following employees were 
covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees o,  beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 	 34 

Inactive employees entit ed to but not yet receivog benefits 	 60 

Active employees 	 88 

182 

Contributions  

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross 

earnings, and the city rnatching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as 

adopted by the governing body of the city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the 

contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age 

Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount 

necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 

additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

Employees for the City of Lago Vista, Texas were required to contribute 6% of their annual 

gross earnings during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Lago Vista, Texas 

were 7.71% and 7.87% in calendar years 2017 and 2018, respectively. The city's 

contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2018, were $334,163, and were 

equal to the required contributions. 

Net Pension Liability 

The city's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the Total 

Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liabil:ty was determined by an 

actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial assumptions: 

The Total Pension Liability in the Decernber 31, 201 7 actuarial valuation was determined 

using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 	 2.5% per year 

Overall payroll growth 	3.0% per year 

Investment Rate of Return 	6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

Salary increases were based on a service-related table Mortality rates for active members, 

retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy 

Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and fernale 

rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BE to 

account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct 

RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment with males rates 

multiplied by 109% and fernale rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set forward for both 

males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the 

impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully 

generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality irnprovements subject to the 

3% floor. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017, valuation were based on the results 

of actuarial experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 
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31, 2010 through December 31, 2014, first used in the December 31, 2015 valuation. 

Healthy post-retirement mortality rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience 

Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These 

assumptions were first used in the December 31, 201 3 valuation, along with a change to the 

Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed annually. No 

additional changes were made for the 2017 valuation. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%. The pension 

plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is establishea and may be amended 

by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an 

emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy 

the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 

building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 

(expected returns, net of pension plan investrnent expense and inflation) are developed for 

each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 

return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 

percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of 

arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 

Asset Class 

Target 

Allocation 

Long-Term 

Expected Peal 

Rate of Return 

(Aritnmetic, 

Dorpest;c Equity 

literoat:ora 	Equ:ty 

17 5% 

17.5% 

4 55% 

a 	10311 

Core. Fixed hcome 10 0% l CO% 

Non-Core Fixed ircorie 20 03; 3 55% 

Rea 1 4 01.'o 

Rea; E3tat:i 10.0q; E 00 3 

Aosolu'e Returr 10 CP, 4 00 % 

Private Equity 5 0% 5 CO% 

T0t31 100 O'o 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of 

cash flows used to determine the discount rate assurned that employee and employer 

contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute Based on that assumption, the 

pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected 

future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term 

expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 

benefit payments to deterrnine the Total Pension Liability 
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Total Pension 

Liab 	ity 

(a) 

Increasel(Decrease) 

Fiduciary 

Net Position 

(b) 

Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset) 

(a)-(b) 

Balances as of December 31, 2016 $ 	9,143,202 $ 	8,415,215 $ 	727,987 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 530,359 530,359 

Interest 623,948 623,948 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

Difference between Expected and Actual 101,262 

Experience 

Changes in Assumptions 

Contributions - Employer 316,030 (316,030) 

Cont7ibut,ons - Employee 245,916 (245,916) 

Net investment income 1,166,782 (1,166,782) 

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of 

Employee Contributions (329,404) (329,404) 

Administrative Expense (6,044) 6,044 

Othe- Changes 13061 306 

Ne: Changes 926,165 1,392,974 (568,071) 

Balances as of Decerr be-  31,2017 $ 10,069,367 $ 	9,808,189 $ 	261,179 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the net pension )iability of the City, calculated using the discount rate 

of 6.75%, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using 

a discount rate that is 1-percentage-poliit lower (5.75%) or 1-perceotage-paint higher 

(7.75%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Single Rate 1% Increase 

5.75% Assumption 6.75% 7.75% 

$ 	1,653,056 $ 	261,179 $ (896,392) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary IVet Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a 

separately-issued TMRS financial report. That report rnay be obtained on the Internet at 

www.tmrs.com , 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Related to Pensions  

For the year ended September 30, 2018. the City recognized pension expense of $ 422,751. 
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At September 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred inflows 

of Resources 

 

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 

   

Differences between expected and actual experience 9,940 $ 104,739 

Changes of assumptions 64,712 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 479,529 226,043 

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 258,066 

489,469 $ 653,560 

$258,066 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting frorn 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the 

net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as 

deferred outfiows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 

expense as follows: 

Year ended December 31. 

2012 $ 	81,961 

2019 36,562 

2020 (92,7471 

2021 (119,751) 

2022 

Thereafter 

Total 	 $ (93,975) 

M. 	Defined Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan 

Benefit Plan Description. Texas Municipal Retirement System rTMRS") administers a defined 

benefit group-term insurance plan known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund ("SDBF"). 

The plan is a single employer defined benefit group life insurance plan. This is a voluntary 

program in which participating member cities may elect, by ordinance, to provide group-term 

life insurance coverage for their ectNe members, including or not including retirees The 

death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the 

employee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-

month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is considered an 

other postemployment benefit ("OPEB") and is a fixed amount of $7,500. As the SDBF 

covers both active and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is 

considered to be an unfunded OPEB plan (i.e. no assets are accumulated). The City rnay 

terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance 

before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1. 

The member city contributes to the SDBF at a contractually requ:red rate as determined by an 

annual actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life 

insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are 

available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year. The intent is not to pre-

fund retiree term life insurance during employees entire careers. 

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in the SDBF, 

The City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the year ended 2018, 2017 and 2016 were 
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$10,041, $8,800 and $8,115 respectively, which equaled the required contributions each 

year. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. 

At the December 31, 2017 valuation and rneasurement date, the following employees were 
covered by benefit terms: 

Inactive employees currently receiving benefits 	 21 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 	 8 

Active employees 	 88 

Total 	 117 

Total OPEB Liability  

The City's Total OPEB Liability (TOL) was measured as of December 31, 2017 and was 

determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial assumptions: 

The TOL in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 	 2,50% 

Salary Increases 	 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation 

Discount rate' 	 3.31% 

Retirees share of benefit-related costs 	$0 

Administrative expenses 	 All administrative expenses are paid through the 

Pension Trust and accounted for under reporting 

requirements under GASB Statement No. 68 
Mortality rates - service retirees 	 RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar 

Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and 

female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a 

fully generational basis with scale BB. 
Mortality rates - disabled retirees 	 RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar 

Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and 

female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3 year set-

forward for both males and females. The rates are 

projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB 

to account for future mortality improvements subject 
tn the O,  finnr 

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GC AA Index" rate as 

of December 31, 2017. 

These actuarial assumptions were developed prinlarily from the actuarial investigation of the 

experience of TMRS over the four year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 

2014. They were adopted in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial 

valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity 

Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 

2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. 

Discount Rate  

Because the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund is considered an unfunded trust under GASB 

Staternent No. 75, the relevant discount rate for calculating the Total OPEB Liability is based 

on the Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" rate as of the measurement date, 
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Covered Payroll 	 $ 	4,098,600 

Tote! OPEB Liability - beginning of year 	 152,575 

Changes for tno year 

Service Cost 	 13 116 

Interest on Total ()FEB Liability 	 6 COO 

Changes of benefit tern-1s 

Differences between expectea and actual experience 

Changes in assump:ions or other inputs 	 14,459 

Benefit Payrrents 	 1820) 

Net changes 

Total OPEB Liability - end of year 	 $ 	185,330 

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 	 4.52% 

**Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan under GASB 75, 

benefit payments are treated as being equal to the employer's yearly 

contributions for retirees. 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the Total OPEB Liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate 

of 3.31%, as well as what the City's Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using 

a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.31%) or 1-percentage-point higher 

(4.31%) than the current rate• 

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase 

(2.31%) (3.31%) (4.31%) 

$ 	222,137 $ 	 185,330 $ 	156,534 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $14,774 

At September 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to OPEB frorn the following sources• 

Deferred (Inflows) of 

Resources 

Deferred Djtflows 

of Resources 

Dtfferences between expectea and actual experience $ 	 - $ 	 - 

Changes in assumptions ard other inputs 12,025 

Corvuibut ons made subsequent to rneasurement date 7,370 

Total (excluding contributions made subsequent to 

measurement date) $ $ 	 19,895 

$7,870 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting frorn 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the 

Total OPEB liability for the year ending September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as 

deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recogntzed in OPEB 

expense as follows: 

32,755 
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Year ended December 31: 

2018 $ 	2,434 

2019 2,434 

2020 2,434 

2021 2,434 

2022 2,289 

Thereafter 

To..al $ 	12,025 

N. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The City offers its employees deferred compensation programs through Nationwide Retirement 
Solutions, inc. 	The plan, created in accordance with internal Revenue Code Section 457, permits 

participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not 

available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable ernergency. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those 

amounts and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made 

available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the City, subject only 

to the claims of the City's general creditors, Participants rights under the plan are equal to those of 

general creditors of the City in an amount equal to the fair rnarket value of the deferred account for 

each participant. 

The City has no liability for losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be 

required of an ordinary prudent investor. The City believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets 

to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. 

O. Ernployee Insurance Benefits 

All regular full time employees of the city are eligible for coverage under the group 

hospitalization. medical, dental and life insurance program provided by the city through TML 

Group Benefits Risk Pool. The city pays the premium for eligible employees and ernployees, 

at their option, may authorize payroll withholdings to pay premiums for eligible family 

members. 

lnterfund Transactions  

Interfund balances at Septernber 30, 2018 consisted of the following: 

Receivable Payable 

General Fund $ 	393,870 $ 	493,410 

Debt Service Fund 146,644 

Special Revenue Fund 37,632 

Capital Projects Fund 1,815,384 

Golf Course Fund 2,475,264 

Utility Fund 4,281,176 

TOTALS $ 	4,821,690 $ 	4,821,690 
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During the year ended September 30, 2018, the City's transfers between funds consisted of: 

Transfers 
In 

Transfers 
Out 

General Fund $ 	1,507,886 $ 	507,886 

Capital Projects Fund 

Debt Service Fund 500,000 

Golf Course 500,000 

Utility Fund 2,000,000 

TOTALS $ 	2,507,886 $ 	2,507,886 

Q 	Long-Term Debt-Advance Refundings 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds — Series 2016A and Series 2016B 

During 2017, the City advance refunded Limited Tax Note, Series 2015 ($1,945,000) and Limited Tax 
Note, Taxable Series 2015 ($3,738,000) The bonds were called and were redeemed on February 
15, 2017 by purchasing $5,763,253 in U.S. State and Local Government securities The various 
bonds have been defeased and removed as a liability of the City The Series 2016A and Series 
20168 bonds mature on February 15, in each of the years 2018 through 2037, bearing interest at 
1.480 — 3.856%. The refunding bonds resulted in a gross debt service loss of $2,020,989 and the net 
present value savings of $159,007 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds — Series 2016 

During 2015. the City advance refunded general obligation refunding bonds — Series 2005 
($9,960.000) The bonds were called and were redeemed on February 15, 2015 by purchasing 
$7,598,093 in U.S. State and Local Government securities. The various bonds have been defeased 
and removed as a liability of the City. The Series 2015 bonds mature on February 15, in each of the 
years 2016 through 2022, bearing interest at 2.16%. The refunding bonds resulted in a gross debt 
service loss of $2,386,573 and the net present value savings of $138,877. 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds — Series 2011  

During 2012, the City advance refunded a portion of several of the City's obligations with one 
refunding. general obligation refunding bonds — Series 2011 ($4,535,000) The various bonds were 
called and were redeemed on December 1, 2011 by purchasing $4,612 372 in U S State and Local 
Governrnent securities The various bonds have been defeased and removed as a liability of the City 
The Series 2011 bonds mature on February 15, in each of the years 2012 through 2023, bearing 
interest at 2 0% and 3 0% The refunding bonds resulted in a gross debt service savings of $351,141 
and the net present value savings of 8293,664 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds — Series 2009 

During 2009, the City advance refunded a portion of several of the City's obligations with one 
refunding, general obligation refunding bonds - Series 2009 ($2,340 000). The various bonds were 
called and were redeemed on August 20, 2009 by purchasing $2,305,790 in U.S. State and Local 
Government securities The various bonds have been defeased and removed as a liability of the City 
The Series 2009 bonds mature on Februanj 15, in each of the years 2010 through 2019, bearing 
interest at 3 3%. 
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R. Negative Unrestricted Net Position 

The unrestricted net position for the governmental activities reflects a large negative balance. 
Since the City finances utility fund improvements with taxes, the assets are reflected in the 

utility fund while the debt is shown in the governmental activities. This causes a large 
negative balance for unrestricted net position in the governmental activities as shown below: 

Long-term debt used to finance 

utility (enterprise) fund improvements - 

Unrestricted Net Position 

As Reported on Exhibit A-1 

$ 	(35,171,000) 

7,709,344 

$ 	(27,461,656) 

S. Contingent Liabilities 

  

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. 	Any disallowed claims, including 

amounts already collected, rnay constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if 

any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this 
time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Cash Flows Statement — Supplemental Disclosures 

Since the City is tax exempt, no income tax was paid in 2018 and 2017. The City paid 
interest in the amount of $26,172 in 2018 and $27,763 in 2017. 

U. Public Improvement Districts 

On May 11, 2012 the City granted a petition to create Tessera on Lake Travis Public 

Improvement District. The Petitioners proposed the District be managed by the City with, 
at the option of the City, the assistance of other parties as determined by the City. The 
costs and expenses of the services of such other parties shall be part of the cost of 
operating and administering the District. The City will no: be obligated to provide any 
funds to finance construction of authorized improvements. All design and construction 

costs of authorized improvernents will be paid from assessments and from other sources 

of funds, if any, available to the Petitioners. 

On Septernber 11, 2014 Hines Lake Travis Land II Limited Partnership conveyed Phase I 

assets of Tessera on Lake Travis Public Improvement District to the City. The 
governmental assets totaled $12,798,379 in infrastructure, improvements and buildings 

and the proprietary fund assets (Utility Fund) totaled $4,949,459 in system 

improvements, The total assets conveyed were $17,747,838. 

V. Employee Benefit Trust 

On September 20, 2018 the City through Resolution No. 1 8-1 769 created an Employee 

Benefit Trust. It is a nonprofit trust created for the purpose of providing or offering, 
whether now or possibly in the future, City officers, employees, and qualified retirees and 
their dependents with life, disability, sickness, accident, and other health benefits either 
directly or through the purchase of insurance and to perform operations in furtherance 
thereof. The Trust is intended to qualify as a tax-exempt trust performing an essential 

government function within the meaning of Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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W. Related Party 

In the ordinary course of business, the City has and expects to continue to have 
transactions with its employees and elected officials. In the opinion of management, such 
transactions were on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, 

as those prevailing at the time of comparable transactions with other persons and did not 

involve more than a normal risk of collectability or present any other unfavorable features 
to the City. 

X. Prior Period Adjustment 

During the fiscal year 2018, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 75 for Other Post 
Employment Benefits. Under GASB Statement No. 75 the District must report their Net 

OPEB Liability of the TMRS (Texas Municipal Retirement System) Supplemental Death 
Benefit Fund. Adoption of GASB Statement No. 75 required a prior period adjustment in 

the governmental activities of $90,575 and $62,000 in the business type activities. The 

restated beginning net position of the governmental activities is ($6,525,371) and in the 
business type activities is $60,117,920. 

Y. Subsequent Events 

The City has evaluated subsequent events through January 16, 2019, the date which 
the financial statements were available to be issued. In October 2018 the City settled a 

law suit with Brian Atlas in the amount of $70,000. The City is not aware of any other 
subsequent events that materially impact the financial statements. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



EXHIBIT G-1 
CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual 
Amounts 

(UA,AP BASIS) 

Variance With 
Final Budzet 
Poutlye or 
(Neg.:live; Orizinal Final 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Property Taxes 2,908.139 $ 	2 903,139 $ 	3,130,623 8 	222,484 
General Sales and Use Taxes -138 233 438.233 480,798 -12,560 
Franchise Tax -189,382 489,382 467,578 (21,804) 
Other Taxes 7,000 7,000 7,426 426 

Licenses and Perrni`.s 273,200 273,200 572,655 299,455 
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants -18,230 48,230 103,128 54,898 
Charges for Services 813,322 813,322 867,520 54 198 
Fines 105.600 105,600 106 088 488 
Investrnent Earntngs 6.000 6,212 66 250 60,038 
Rents and Royalties - _ 122,815 122,815 
Contributions ,S: Donations from Private Sources 42.000 -12,000 45,420 3,420 
Other Re‘enue 60.645 60.6-15 170,661 110,016 

Total Revenues 5 191,756 5,191,968 6,140.962 948,994 

EXPENDITURES• 
Curient• 

Administration 601,967 601,967 45-1,536 117,431 
Nor, Depaitmental S2,700 82.700 71 399 11.301 
Development Services 557.234 557,283 509,755 47,528 
Finance 222 318 222,318 197,721 24,597 
Iluman Resouices 101 326 101,326 06,066 4,360 
Municipal Court 155 169 165,169 161 561 

Cit> Secietary 124,95-i 124,954 114,659 3  10:6

8

028

6

58  

City Attorney .. 286 (2 	 ) 
Police Department 1,873,008 2,103,001  2 060,523 42,481 
Dispatching 
Public Works Streets 

381.2-13 

875,188 
381,243 
995,190 

347,049 

08,123 3  17819  ,0678  
Soltd Waste 633,21C 633.210 627,164 5,846 
Bui:ding Maintenance 55,456 55,456 21,412 
Recreation 
Aviation 

111 	164 

43,731 

111,164 

226,131 
211  '371)4771:055141451185; 

4 019 
8 577 

Library 1 02,518 191,519 18,011 
Parks 112,044 147,4-12 122.622 24,820 

Debt Service' 
Principal on Debt 5,101  15,861 (10,754) 
Interest on Debt 496 500 (10) 

Total Expenditures 6,133,230 6 706.682 6,292,192 414.490 

Excess (Deficiency) of Re% enues Over (Under) (941,524) (4514,)14) (151,230) 1,363,484 
Exoendituies 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Non-Current Loans 122,1S8 122,188 
"liansfers In 1,500,000 1.500,000 1,507.886 7,386 
Transfers Out (Use) (555330) (555,130) (507,386) 47,2-14 

Total Other Financing Sources (Usei) 944,870 944,370 1,122,183 177,318 

Net Change in Fund Balances 3,3-16 (569,844) 970,958 1.54o,802 
Fund Balance - October 1 (BeginninE) 3.382 330 3,332,330 3,382,330 

Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) 3,385,076 3 2,812,486 $ 	4.353,288 S 	1,540,302 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF LAGO VISTA. TEXAS 
	

EXHIBIT G-2 

SCIIEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

A. Total Pension Liability 

Service Cost 

FY 2018 
Plan Year 2017 

FY 2017 
Plan Year 20 16 

FY 2016 
Plan Year 2015 

FY 2015 
Plan Year 2014 

$ 530,359 $ 498,365 $ 431,114 $ 	362,0(5 

Intel cst (on the Total Pension Liability) 623,948 569,842 527.056 489.774 

Changes of Benefit Terms -0- -0- -0- -0- 

Diffeience between Expected and Actual Experience 101.262 43,293 20,443 (73,396) 

Changes of Assumptions -0.. -0- 212.906 -0- 

Benefit Payments, including refunds of employee contributions (329.40-1) (322,425) (302 417) (258.266) 

Net change in Total Pension Liability S 926,165 $ 789,075 S 889,102 S 	5 70.127 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 9.143,202 8,354,127 7,465;025 6,944,898 
.... 

rota! Pension Liability - Ending S 10.069,367 	S 	9.143,202 S 	8,354.127 $ 	7,465.025 

B. Total Fiduciary Net Position 

Contributions - Emplo> er $ 316,030 $ 249,566 S 	234.86-1 S 	215,450 

Contriubtions - Emplo>cc 2-15,916 231.081 212.5-16 203,575 

Net Investment Income 1,166,782 523.318 11,202 402 356 

Benefit Pay merits, including iefunds of employee contri'Jutions (329,404) (322 425) (302,417) (258.266) 

Athnunstia:ive Expense (6.044) (5,907) (6,822) (4,200) 

Othei (306) (318) (337) (345) 

Net Chan2e in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1.392.973 	S 	675,315 S 149,035 $ 	558,570 

Plan Fiducia,.ty Nct Pos.tion - Beginning 8.415.215 7.739,900 7,590,865 7,032,295 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending 9,808,188 $ 	3 415.215 $ 	7 739,900 S 	7,590,865 

C. Net Pension Liability 261.179 S 727,987  $ 	614,227 S 	(125.840) 

D. Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total 97 4 92 04% 92 65% 101 69% 
Pension Liability 

E. Covered Payroll 4,098,61 )0 	S 	3,851.351 	S 	3,542,430 $ 	3.392,918 

F. Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 6.37°o 18.90% 17 34% (3 71%) 

Noto• GASB 68. Paragraph 46. a and b requires that the data in this schedule be presented for the time period covered by the measurement 
date rather than the governmental entity's current fiscal year 

Note Only four >cars of data arc presented in accordance \Aith GASBS 468, parauraph 138 ""lhe information for ail periods tbr the 10-year 
schedules that are required to be presented as iequired supplementary information inay not be available initially In these cases, during the 

ansition period. that information should bc presented for as many yeais as are al,ailable The schedules should not include information that 
is not measured in accordance +Nith the requirements of this Statement " 
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CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR THE FISCAI, YEAR 2018 

  

EXHIBIT G-3 

       

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Actual ially Dem mined Contribution 331,163 	$ 300,205 $ 254.860 5 235,583 

Conti ibutions in Relation to the A.ctuarially Determined (334,163) (300.205) (254,860) (235,583) 
Contributions 

Corm ibution Deficiency (Excess) 
-0- S -0- S -0- $ -0- 

Covered Payroll -L266,109 $ 	4.042,094 S 	3,911,628 S 	3,491,490 

Contributions as a Peicentage of Co‘ered Payroll 7.84% 7 43% 6 52% 6.75% 

Note. GASB 68, Paraztaph 81 requires that the data in this schedule be presented as of the aovernmental entity's respective fiscal years as 
opposed to the time periods covered by the measurement dates ending December 31 for the respective fiscal years 

Note In accordance i%,ith GASB 68, Paragraph 138, the years of data presented this repordna period are those for which data is available. 
"The information for all periods for the 10-year schedules that an: required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be 
available initially In these cases. during the transition period, that information sLiould he presented for as many years as are available The 
schedules should not include information ti,at i; not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statemen:" 
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CITY OF LAGO VIST A, TEXAS 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Valuation Date: 
Notes 	 Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, 

and become effective in January 13 months later. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial Cost 
	

Entry Age Normal 
Method 

Amortization 	Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed 
Method 
Remaining 
Amortization 

Period 	 25 years 

Asset Valuation 	10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor 
Method 
Inflation 	 2 5% 

Salary Increases 	3 5% to 10 5% including inflation 

Investment Rate 
of Return 	 6 75% 

Retirement Ace 	Experience-based tables of rates that are specific to the City s plan of benefits Last 
updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2010-
2014 

Mortality 
	

RP-2000 Combined Monality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment wth male rates 
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully 
generational basis with scale BB 

Other Information: 

Notes 	 There were no benefit changes during the year. 
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EXHIBIT 0-1 

  

CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR 'ME YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

        

Total OPEB Liability 

FY 2018 
Plan Year 2017 

Service Cost 13,116 

Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 6,000 

Changes or Benefit Ter ms -0- 

Difference beMeen Expected and Actual Experience -0- 

Changes of Assumptions 14,459 

Benefit Payments* (820) 

Net change in Total OPEB Liabiltty 32,755 

Total OPEB Liabilit 	- Beginning 152.575 

Total OPEB Liahïlit 	- Ending S 185.330 

Co‘ered Payroll 	 S 	4.098.600 

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of CON ered Payroll 
	

4 52% 

*the Suppl,:nlental Death Benefit Fund is conqideied to be an unfunded OPEB plan under OASB 75 Because oft-ns bendit 
paymmt; are treatd IS bcing, equal to the employer's )early contributions for retirees 

\ink: GASI3 Codification. Vol 2, P52 139 states that tile information 	this sclidule shcml ! be determined a3 of the 
meas,Jterrwm dat:. of the plan 

leTrired ;.1) GASB 75, thk schedule will bc bu't r. oNpvc:ivel) iy4th: info-ma:1,w become; at arlahe tintil 10 )ear.,- or 
information is presented. 
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CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Valuation Date: 

Notes 
	

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, 
And become effective in January 13 months later. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Inflation 	 2.5% 
Salary increases 	 Salary increases are assumed to occur once a year, on 

January 1. Therefore, the pay used for the period year 
following the valuation date is equal to the reported pay 
for the prior year, increased by the salary increase assumption. 
Salaries are assumed to increase by 3.50% to 10.5% including 
inflation 

Actuarial Cost Method: 	 Entry Age Normal 
Valuation of Assets: 	 For purposes of calculating the Total OPEB Liability, 

The plan is considered to be unfunded and therefore no 
assets are accumulated for OPEB. 

Retirees share of benefit-related costs $0 
Administrative expenses 	 All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension 

Trust and accounted for under reporting requirements under 
GASB Statement No. 68. 

Mortality rates — service retirees 	RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar 
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and 
female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully 
generational basis with scale BB. 

Mortality rates — disabled retirees 	RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar 
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female 
rates multiplied by 103% with a 3 year set-forward for both 
rnales and females. The rates are projected on a fully 
generational basis vvith scale BB to account for future 
mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor. 

Discount Rate 	 Because the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund is considered 
an unfunded trust under GASB Staternent No. 75, the 
relevant discount rate for calculating the Total OPEB Liability 
is based on the Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA 
Index" rate as of the measurement date. Discount rate is 
3.31%. 

Supplemental Death Benefit 	 The contribution rate for the Supplemental Death Benefit (SDB) 
Is equal to the expected benefit payments during the upcoming 
year divided by the annualized pay of current active members 
and is calculated separately for actives and retirees. Due to 
the significant reserve in the Supplemental Death Fund, the 
SDB rate for retiree coverage is currently only one-third of the 

total term cost. 

Other Information: 

Notes 	There were no benefit changes during the year. 
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NEFFENDORF & KNOPP, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

P.O. BOX 874 • 736 S. WASHINGTON ST. 
FREDERICKSBURG, TEXAS 78624-0874 

(830) 997-3348 
MEMBER 	 FAX: (830) 997-3333 	 MEMBER 

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 	 Email: info@nkpccpa.com 	 TEXAS SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 	 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

January 16, 2019 

Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Council 

City of Lago Vista, Texas 

Lago Vista, TX 78645 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining tund information of the City of Lago Vista, Texas for the year 

ended September 30, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about 

our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards land, if applicable, Government Auditing 

Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated December 4., 

2018. Professional standards also require that vie communicate to you the following information related 

to our audit 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Managernent is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City of Lego Vista, Texas are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 

Other Than Pensions was adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the 

year ended Septernber 30, 2018 We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during 
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have 
been recognized in the financial staternents in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by rnanagernent and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. 

Certain financial staternent disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accurnulate ali known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management Management has corrected all such misstatements In addition, none of the misstatements 

detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or 
in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 

auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated January 16, 2019. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 

of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements. our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were 
not a condition to our retention 

Other Matters  

With respect to the supplementary information accornpanying the financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We cornpared and reconciled 
the supplernentary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 

statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

Recommendations 

Bank Reconciliations  

Several old outstanding checks are being carried on the bank reconciliations. We recommend the checks 
be researched and cleared or re-issued. 

During the review of the bank reconciliations no review and approval was noted on the reconciliations, 
We recommend review and approval from someone other than the person preparing the reconciliations 
and evidence of that review and approval be noted on the reconciliations. 

Investment Policy  

The City's investment policy was not reviewed and adopted by those charged with governance during the 
fiscal year. The local government code chapter 2256 Public Funds Investment requires the investment 
policy and investment strategies be reviewed not less than annually. We recommend the investment 
policy and investment strategies be reviewed by those charged with governance annually. 



Payroll Benefit Deductions  

Testing of the employee withholdings revealed inconsistency with the amount withheld from the 
employees pay and the invoices for insurance benefits. We recommend the Human Resources Manager 
conduct an internal audit and update the withholding rates for benefits paid by the employee. 

Utility Inventory 

Utility inventory listing was the same dollar amount as the prior year. We recommend a physical 
inventory be conducted at year end and the inventory listing updated. 

Contributed Assets 

Infrastructure in the amount of $634,861 was conveyed to the City from Paseo De Vaca dur ing the fiscal 
year. The information was not provided to the Finance Department from the Public Works departrnent 
and the assets were not recorded. We recommend a policy and procedure be implemented regarding 

contributed assets. 

Grant Documents  

Grants documents were requested from those administering the grants. Those documents were not 

readily available and some were missing. We recommend that all grant documents be sent to the Finance 
Departrnent for proper recording and documentation. 

Sale of Municipal Assets  

The Highland Lakes Golf Course was sold in September 2018. The City was required to refund the sale 
proceeds due to non-compliance with Local Government Code Sec 272.001 Title 8 regarding procedures 
for sale of municipal assets. We recomrnend the City review and comply with the local government code. 

Employee Expenditure Reimbursement  

The City currently has no policy regarding the reimbursement of expenses to employees other than for 

travel. 	We recommend the City adopt a policy regarding expenditures purchased for the City by 
employees with personal funds and subsequently reimbursed. 

Related Party Policy  

The City currently has no policy regarding transactions with related parties. We recommend a policy be 
adopted. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of City of Lego Vista 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

pc 
NEFFENDORF & KNOPP, P.C. 
Fredericksburg, Texas 



Attachment 6 

TCEQ Licenses — City of Lago Vista (as of March 6, 2019) 



TCEQ Licenses - City of Lago Vista (as of March 6, 2019) 

     

Last Issued 
Date 

     

Name Dept Program License Type & level License # 

 

Expiration 
Date 

 

Lisc Status CE Hours 

           

           

ARNOLD, LAURA D PWA WATEROL WATER DISTRIBUTION 
OPERATOR C 

WD0009996 7/6/2017 5/24/2020 CURRENT 66 

WATEROL SURFACE WATER 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

C 

WS0013346 10/26/2017 10/26/2020 CURRENT 46 

\VWOL WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

D 

WW005919 1 2/26/2018 2/26/2021 CURRENT 6 

CASTRO, STEVE A PLANTS WWOL WASTEWATER WW0059158 3/12/2018 3/12/2021 CURRENT 0 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

D 

FLARIDA, THOMAS C 
	

W/WW 
	

WATEROL 
	

WATER OPERATOR D 
	

W00041215 6/29/2018 6/29/2021 CURRENT 

HOOMANA, HOMAS W/WW WATEROL WATER DISTRIBUTION 
OPERATOR C 

N/A N/A N/A PENDING N/A 

         

LINDIIOLM, SCOOTER L 	PLANTS WATEROL WATER OPERATOR A W00017553 12/28,2017 2/10/2021 CURRENT 10 
WWOL WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT OPERATOR 
B 

WW0027107 4/14/2016 6/23/2019 CURRENT 66 

MAXWELL, 
CHRISTOPHER C 

PLANTS WATEROL SURFACE WATER 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

WS0011436 10/5/2016 10/28/2019 CURRENT 

C 

WW01. WASTEWATER WW0047891 5/16/2016 7/2/2019 ( 	(, RR l'N 1 20 

TREATMENT OPERATOR 
C 

MUNOZ, JOSE A 	PLANTS WATEROL WATER OPERATOR D W00040372 3/9/2017 3/9/2020 CURREIVi.  56 
WWOL 	' WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT OPERATOR 
B 

WW0053954 6/9/2016 6/9/2019 CURRENT $2 

NAVARRO, DIEGO E 
	

GOLF 
	

LIOL 
	

LANDSCAPE IRRIGATOR LI0022369 
	

1/18/2017 
	

1/31/2020 CURRENT 
	

24 

STEWART, DAVID A 
1 

pomp WATEROL SURFACE WATER 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

B 

WS0005682 3/13/2018 5/7/2021 CURRENT 21) 

WWOL WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

A 

WW0013011 9/6/2016 9/23/2019 CURRENT 20 

TWITCHELL, JEREMY 
	

PLANTS 
	

WATEROL 
	

WATER OPERATOR D 
	

W00043754 2/22/2019 2/27/7077 CURRENT 

WALDEN, DAVID M W/WW WATEROL WATER DISTRIBUTION WD0009904 7/10/2018 8/3/2021 CURRENT 
OPERA roR c 

WW0I. WASTEWATER WW0043803 221/2017 2/17/2020 CURRENT 0 

COLLECTION OPERATOR 
I 

WE{ITENER. KATHRYN A PLANTS 
	

WATER01 
	

WATER OPERATOR D 
	

W00041214 10/17720F l n/17/2020 CURRENT 
	

0 

W1LLE, SHAWN F PLANTS WATEROL SURFACE WATER WS0012676 6/21/2016 6/21/2019 CURRENT 20 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

c 

WWOL WASTEWATER WW0058398 10/16/2017 10/16/2020 CURRENT 0 
TREATMENT OPERATOR 

c 



Attachment 7 

1st  Amendment to Water Sale Contract No. 9828 
and Water Sale Contract 



Date: 	 2. 3 	2.v.)/ 3 

CITY OF 	VISTA 

f/A 
Randy Kru, 
Mayor I 

1st AMENDMENT TO WATER SALE CONTRACT NO. 9828 

This agreement is made by and between the Lower Colorado River Authority, hereinafter 
called "LCRA," and the City of Lago Vista hereinafter called "Purchaser," to be effective on 
the date of execution by LCRA, to wit: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the LCRA and Purchaser entered into a certain Water Sale Contract 
No. 9828, dated May 1, 1983, pursuant to which Purchaser was granted the right to divert 
up to a maximum of 6,500 acre-feet of raw water per annum from Lake Travis in Travis 
County, Texas (the "Contract"); and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Contract expires on May 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, it has become desirable to amend the Contract to add an additional 
diversion point identified in Exhibit A to the Contract; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in mutual consideration of the premises and provisions 
hereinafter contained, LCRA and Purchaser agree to amend said Contract as follows: 

Exhibit A is replaced with new "Amended Exhibit A" attached to this amendment. 

All sections of and Exhibits to Contract No. 9828 not amended hereby shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY 

By. 
s„, r  Karen Bondy, P.E. 

---- Executive Manager, Water Resources 

Date: 
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98,2. 

WATER SALE CONTRACT 

The Lower Colorado River Authority, hereinafter called 

"Authority," and Travis County Municipal Utility District 

No. 1, the purchaser hereunder, hereinafter called "Purchaser," 

in mutual consideration of the provisions herein contained 

agree as follows: 

1. From and after the effective date hereof, Purchaser 

shall have the right to withdraw a maximum of 6,500 acre-

feet (2,139 million gallons) of raw water per annum from the 

Colorado River (Lake Travis) in Travis County, Texas, at a 

point or points within a segment bordering on Lake Travis 

described and depicted in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the 

"Points of Diversion"), said Exhibit depicting the segment 

by reference to a corner of an original land survey and/or 

other survey point, giving both course and distance. The 

water authorized to b diverted hereunder at the Pcint.s of 

version shall be water available in or released from con-

servation storage in Lakes Travis and Buchanan under water 

rights held by the Authority, including Permit Nos 1239 and 

1260. The Authority shall release or cause to be released 

water from conservation storage in Lake Travis anl Suohanan 

and deliver such water to the Points of Diversion in the 

necessary amounts and at the necessary times and rates to 

allow Purchaser to divert water at the Points of Diversion 

in such amounts and at such times and rates as needed by 

Purchaser, up to a total diversion of 6,500 acre-feet of 

water per annum. Where the Authority releases water from 

Lake Buchanan, the Authority shall bear all transportation 

and evapotranspiration losses from Lake Buchanan to the 

Points of Diversion. Purchaser is to furnish and bear ex-

penses of pumping facilities and metering equipment of type 

approved by Authority. Purchaser represents to Authority 

and Authority relies on such representation that all water 

withdrawn at the Points of Diversion will be used for the 

following purposes: 

'ð 



Municipal and Irrigation. 

Water provided by Authority shall be exclusively used within 

that certain area consisting of a total of 4,825.93 acres 

shown on the drawing attached hereto as Exhibit "B", which 

area consists of various tracts described in Exhibit "C" 

attached hereto, together with all other lands lawfully an-

nexed by the Purchaser, hereinafter called the "Property". 

Purchaser warrants and certifies that the area described in 

Exhibits "B" and "C" for which its water service is proposed 

is situated completely within the Colorado River Basin and, 

at the present time, lies within Travis County Municipal 

Utility District No, 1. 

2. Purchaser shall pay Authority $IC 57-'1.4   upon exe-

cution of this contract for the reservation of permitted 

waters for the Purchaser's benefit for the remainder of cal-

endar year 1983; provided, however, that if because of 

making the payment for the reservation of permitted waters 

for the calendar vear 1983 Purchaser shall reserve a quan-

tity of water not actually diverted by it during the 1983 

calendar year (herein called "Reserved Water"), then Par-

chaser shall be entitled to divert such Reserved Water at 

any time and from time-to-time durin the five calendar 

years immediately following the year in which the water 

treatment plant is placed into operation ("Startup"), without 

makin=4 furth-r payment therefor. 

For eacn calendar year beginning with the year following 

Strtuo, Purchaser shall be required hereunder to pay Auth-

ority annually for a minimum quantity of water (the "Minimum 

Annual Quantity") of at least 105,894,430 gallons of water 

re;;ardless of whether or not such amount of water is diverted 

by Parchaser, provided, however, that after the second 

calendar year following Startup the Minimum Annual Quantity 

shall be increased (but may never be decreased below 

105,894,430 gallons) to a quantity equal to eighty percent 

(80%) of the average annual quantity diverted by Purchaser 

during the two (2) years immediately preceding the year for 

which the minimum payment is being calculated if said eighty 
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percent (80%) of the average annual quantity exceeds 

105,894,430 gallons. On or before the tenth (10th) day of 

January in each calendar year beginning with the year fol-

lowing Startup the Authority shall bill Purchaser for an 

amount equal to the product of the Minimum Annual Quantity 

of water required to be paid for during that year times the 

rate determined by the Board of Directors of the Authority 

tc be then in effect for all withdrawals of water from Lake 

Travis (the "Water Rate"). The Water Rate presently in 

effect for all such withdrawals is $0.15/1,000 gallons. 

On or before the tenth (10th) day of each calendar 

month, the Authority shall submit a statement to Purchaser 

showing the Minimum Annual Quantity of water paid for in 

the calendar year in which the previous calendar month is 

included, the quantity of water diverted by Purchaser at 

the Points of Diversion during such preceding calendar month 

(the "Monthly Diversion"), and the aggregate quantity of 

water diverted by Purchaser at the Points of Diversion -2.ur-

ing the calendar year through s.ich preceding calendar month 

(the "Aggreqate Diversion"). Each such statement either 

shall provide that no amount of monay is due the Authority 

tor water diverted during the previous calendar month, or 

shall include a bill for such diversions. Sach mnthly 

till, if any, shall be tor an amount equal to the product 

of the Wat-.r Pate then in etfect times the 1es er c:f th-

Monthly Diversion during such previous calendar month or 

the amount, if any, by which the Aggregate Diversion 

through such preceding calendar month exceeds the Minimum 

Annual Qaantity; provided, however, (a) that if because of 

making the payment for the Minimum Annual Quantity pro-

vided above, except during the two calendar years following 

Startup, Purchaser shall pay for any quantity of water 

not actually diverted by it during a calendar year (herein 

called "Paid-for Water"), then Purchaser shall be entitled 

to divert such Paid-for Water at any time and from time-to-

time during the next two succeeding calendar years without 

making further payment therefor, and (b) that if any Paid-for 
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Water is not actually diverted hy Purchaser during either 

or both of the two calendar years immediately following 

Startup, then Purchaser shall be entitled to divert such 

Paid-for Water at any time and from time-to-time during the 

next five succeeding calendar years without making further 

payment therefor, provided, however, (a) that except during 

the five calendar years following Startup, the Minimum 

Annual Quantity to be paid for by Purchaser in each year 

shall be first taken and no Paid-for Water shall be consid-

ered as being part of such minimum; (b) during the five cal-

endar years following Startup, the Paid-for-Water or Reserved 

Water shall be first taken but shall not be considered part 

of such minimum; and (c) any Paid-for Water or Reserved 

Water which is taken over and above the Minimum Annual 

Quantity shall noi-  be included in establishing the Minimum 

Annual Quantity for which payment shall be made by Purchaser 

in any succeeding calendar year. 

Each bill submitt_d to Purchaser pursuant te the terms 

sc this Paragraph 2 shall be caid Authority at its office in 

Austin, Texas, by check or bankwire on or b-fore fifteen 

15) days from the date of mailing of the bill. In the 

event Purchaser fails to make payment of that billing with-

in said fifteen (15) day paricd, it shall then pay a five 

bercent (3%) late oarrer.t charge. 

3. To measure c.he amount of water uiverted at the 

Points of Diversion, Purchaser a.jrees at Purchaser's ex-

pense to install at the Points of Diversion such flow meters 

and recording devices as are approved by the Authority, such 

meters to permit, within two percent (2%) accuracy, deter-

mination of quantities of raw water withdrawn hereunder in 

units of 1,000 gallons. Such meters may be calibrated at 

any reasonable time by either party to this contract, pro-

vided that the party making the calibration shall notify the 

other party at least two weeks in advance and allow the 

other party to witness the calibration. Authority may 

install, at its expense, check meters in or to any of Pur-

chaser's metering equipment at any time and may leave such 
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check meters installed for such periods as is reasonably 

necessary to determine the accuracy of Purchaser's metering 

equipment. On or before the tenth (10th) day of each month, 

Authority shall have the right to make a reading of the 

meters installed by Purchaser. Furthermore, means of access 

to the meters will be provided to representatives of Authority. 

Further, such meters shall be tested for accuracy by and at 

the expense of Purchaser once each calendar year at intervals 

of approximately twelve (12) months and a report of such 

tests shall be furnished to Authority. However, in the 

event any question arises at any time as to the accuracy of 

any such meter, such meter shall be tested promptly upon the 

demand of Authority, the expense of such test to be borne by 

Authority if the meter is found to be correct and by Pur-

chaser if it is found to be incorrect. Readings within two 

percent (2%) of accuracy shall be considered correct. If, 

as a result of any test, any meter is found to be register- 

ing inacz:urately (i.e., in excess of two percent (2%) 	- 

accura 	the readings of such meter shall be corrected at 

the rase of its inaccuracy for any period which is definitely 

known and agreed upon or, if no such period is known and 

agreed upor., the shorter of the following periods shall be 

used as the b3.sis for cor-,-- 	n: 

(a) period extendir.g back either sixty (60) days 

from the date of demand for the test or, if no demand for 

the test was made, sixty (60) days from the date of the 

test; and 

(b) A period extending back half of the time elapsed 

since the last previous test; 

and the record of readings shall be adjusted accordingly. 

Following each test of a meter, the same shall be adjusted 

by Purchaser to register accurately. Purchaser shall notify 

Authority prior to making each test of any of Purchaser's 

meters and Authority shall haYe the right to have a repre-

sentative present at each test to observe the same and any 

meter adjustments found to te necessary. 

4. Authority makes no guarantee that water will be 
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available at any particular time or place or that Lake 

Travis or Buchanan will be retained at any specific level 

at any particular time. It is fully understood by the par-

ties hereto that the level of said lakes will vary as a 

result of Authority's operation of its dams on the Colorado 

River and that this instrument is merely an agreement to 

require the Authority to make releases of and deliver water 

when and if water is present in said lakes, and to allow 

Purchaser to make withdrawals of the water so released and 

delivered, as set forth in Paragraph 1, subject to the gen-

eral law on distribution and allocation of water during 

shortages of supply. 

5. Purchaser will indemnify and save the Authority 

harmless from any and all claims or demands whatsoever to 

which Authority may be subjected by reason of any injury 

to any person or damage to any property resulting from or 

in any way connected with any and all actions and activi-

ties (or failure to act) of Purchaser under this contract. 

Purchaser's pumping and related facilities shall be in-

stalled an, maintainec by Purchaser at Purchaser's sole 

risk. Nothing in this contract shall ba ccnstrued as auth- 

	

orizing 	rchaser, or recognizing that Purchaser has any 

right, to install any equipment or improvements on property 

owned by Authority or third parties. 

	

a. 	he right of Authority to ffaintain and operate its 

several dams and their appurtenances cn the Colorado River 

and at any and all times in the future to impound and re-

lease waters thereby in any lawful manner and to any lawful 

extent Authority may see fit is recognized by Purchaser; 

and, except as otherwise provided herein, there shall be no 

obligation hereunder upon Authority to release or not to 

release any impounded waters at any time or to maintain any 

waters at any specified level. Authority makes no repre-

sentation as to the quality of the water in Lake Travis and 

Purchaser hereby releases Authority and agrees to hold it 

harmless from any and all claims that Purchaser or Pur-

chaser's customers or users have or may have against Aurh- 



ority for any diminution in or impairment of the quality 

of water in Lake Travis caused by lawful acts or failures 

to act of the Authority. 

7. This contract shall be for a term of 40 years from 

the first day of 	h Y , 1983 and thereafter on a 

year-to-year basis until terminated by thirty (30) days 

written notice by either party; provided, however, that 

Purchaser may at any time terminate this contract by giv-

ing Authority thirty (30) days notice of such termination. 

It is further provided that if Purchaser should fail to 

commence diversion of water under the terms of this contract 

within five (5) years from the date hereof, Authority may 

give Purchaser written notice of intent to terminate this 

contract. If Purchaser fails to divert water hereunder 

within 180 days from the date of receipt of such notice, the 

Authority may, at its sole option, after written notice 

to Purchaser, terminate this contract without recourse. 

Each notice under this -ontract shall be Failed by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, and shall o, effective on 

the date actually received. All notices and bills to Pur-

chaser shall be addressed to Travis County 1ur.1cipal. Utility 

District io 1, P. O. &or. 727, Lego Vista, Texas 7864, and 

1 notic 	an paynent to Authority shalL Le address d to 

Lower Colorado 
	Authority, P. O. šox 220, Austin, _exas 

78767. Either party nay change its address y c.14  tng written 

notice of such change to the other party. 

S. Purchaser a4rees to obtain or cause to be obtained 

all a provais reouired by all applicable state or federal 

agencies for any sanitary sewage system or systems which 

collect domestic sewage derived from water provided herein. 

Failure cf Purchaser to meet any standards imposed by such 

agencies shall subject Purchaser under this contract to all 

remedies allowed by law including, withoat limitation, ter-

mination or suspension of this contract by Authority. Pur-

chaser further agrees that if a sewage treatment plant is 

located within the Property, the Authority shall have reason-

able access to such plant for the purpose of taking samples of 

-7- 



effluent from such plant for testing by Authority to deter-

mine whether Purchaser is in compliance with such standards 

imposed by such agencies. 

9. Except as otherwise provided below, no assignment 

of this agreement in whole or in part for any purpose shall 

be made or granted by Purchaser without the prior written 

consent of Authority, which consent shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. Without having to obtain the Authority's consent, 

Purchaser may assign this contract in whole or in part for 

any purpose to any "public agency" (as such term is defined 

in Section 54.001 of the Texas Water Code) with authority or 

jurisdiction to supply water to the Property. 

10. If the Authority believes that Purchaser has not 

paid the full amount owed for any payment due under Para-

graph 2 hereof within the time provided therefor, the Auth-

ority shall give written notice to Purchaser on or before 

180 days from the date such payment was due stating the 

amount the Authority believes is due and unpaid. Failure of 

the Auth'crity to give such notice by such deadline bars a d 

exti uishes all claims (except claims based on inaccuracy 

of me -.:rs) that the Àuthority may Lave for amounts duc ar.d 

anpal . If the Authority gives any notice as provided 

herein and Purchaser iails to pay aithin 30 days the amoun 

claim 4 Ln such nctice to b due and unpaid, tha Aurhocity 

may, eLIts sole opzion, udun 4iviu notice zo Purdhas 

suspen delivery of water nereun,ler until such payment is 

made. If Authority suspends delivery pursuant to the terms 

hereof, and if Failure to make such payment continues :or 

more than 60 days from the date Authority gives notice of 

such suspension, the Authority may, at its sole opticn, 

after written notice to Purchaser, terminate this contract 

without recourse. If Purchaser should dispute their obliga-

tion to pay all or any part of the amount stated in any bill 

or notice, Purchaser may, in addition to all other rights 

that Purchaser may have under law, pay such amount under 

protest, in which case such amount shall be deposited in an 

interest bearing account mutually acceptable to both the 

-8- 



By 
El 	Soderberg 
General Manager 

Authority and Purchaser pending final resolution of such 

dispute. The Authority may not suspend delivery or termin-

ate this contract for failure to pay the amount stated in 

any bill or notice if Purchaser pays such amount under 

protest. 

1 1. Authority agrees to file a copy of this contract 

with the Executive Director of the Texas Department of Water 

Resources, P. O. Box 13087, Capitol Station, Austin, Texas 

78711, it being fully recognized by the Purchaser hereunder 

that the effectiveness of this contract is dependent upon 

compliance with the Rules of the Texas Water Development 

Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these presents have been executed 

this the 	' day of 	, 1983. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST:  

LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY 

TRAVIS CO'jNTY MUNTCIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 1 

( 	 ,  
F. S. English, Jr., Pre i ent, 
Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

, 

Secretary 
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THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day 
personally appeared Elof Soderberg, General Manager of the 
lower Colorado River Authority, a conservation an3 recla-
mation district, a body politic and corporate and a gov-
ernmental agency of the State of Texas, known to me to be 
the person and officer whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he exe-
cuted the same for the purposes and consideration therein 
expressed, in the capacity therein stated, and as the act 
and deed of said Authority. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this the 
day of_7 	, 1983. 

Notary Public, Travis County, 
Texas 

(SEAL) 
Name of Notary: 

Commission Expires: 

TEE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUMTY OF rRAvis 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day 
personally appeared F. S. English, Jr., President, Board of 
Directors of Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 1, 
known to me to be the person and officer whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to 
me that he executed tha same for the purposes and considera-
tion therein expressed, rr the capacity th.,rein stated. 

GITEN UNDER M1 HANL 	SEAL OF OFFICE 
daj  of ( L" 	, i9 F1 

— ,/ • 	c  
Notary Public, TravLs  
Texas 

(SEATA 
Name of Notary: 

	

rei+AA- 	irL  

Commission Expires: 	r._3 4 k- 

the 
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, 	.. 	 Timo.thy E. Haynie, R.P.S. ftio. c,:"c;0 
State of Texas 

TiVD7hY E. r-111E 

yc% 23E3 

EXHIBIT C 

A DESCRIPTION OF 5.774 ACRES OUT OF THE D & W RAILROAD CO. SURVEY 
NO. 97 IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS; SAID 5.774 ACRES BEING A PORTION 
OF A TRACT DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO STARR HOMES RECORDED IN VOLUME 
6779, PAGE 1499 OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY DEED RECORDS; SAID 5.774 
ACRES BEING MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING at an iron pin found at the northwest corner of F.M. 1431 
and Lohmann Crossing Road for the most easterly corner cf the herein 
described tract; 

THENCE, along the north right-of-way line of said Lohmann Crossing 
Road, 479.97 feet along a curve to the left having a radius of 
800.00 feet, an internal angle of 34° 22 30, and a chord bearing 
S 55° 50' 10" W, 472.80 feet to an iron pin found for the most 
southerly corner of this tract; 

THENCE, leaving said Lohmann Crossing Road, N 590  45' 08" W, 319..62 
feet to nail found; 

THENCE, N 590  18' 20" W, 106.54 feet to an iron pin found for the 
most westerly corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE, N 550  02' E, 872.52 feet to an iron pin found in the west 
line of said F.M. 1431 for the most .northerly corner hereof; 

THENCE, along said west right-of-way line, also being the east line 
hereof, S 050  33' 30" E, 451.64 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING 
containing 5.774 acres, more or less. 

I, Timothy E. Haynie, a Registered Public Surveyor, do hereby certify 
that the above description was prepared from an actual survey made 
on the ground under my supervision, and is true and correct to t.he 
best of my knowledge and belief. 

_nis the 	Z5 r--1  	day of 	 , 1963. 

EXHIBIT "A" 



SCALE. I"- I 00' 
• IRON PIN FND. 
• NAIL FND. 

SKETCH TO ACtOtviPANY WRITTEN° DESCRIPTION 

Haynie & Kalh-nan, 1. 
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PERIXETER FI=LD NOTES OF 
TR.WIS co= :,:::NICIPAL UTILITY DISTRTCT No, 1 

Being 4525.95 acres of land located in tne W.A. Cook Survey No. 
100, Lewis 1,indsay Scrvey No. 265, James Canteli Survey No. 36, 

Rurycar Survey No. 36, iC.S. 	ley Eurvey No. 641, Geer:je 
Johnsen Survey Ne. 535, L.W. Simpson Survey No. 610, H. c C. B.R.R. 
Cc. Survey No. 33, J.11.. Baldwin Surveys No. 38 and 639, D.L W.R.R. Co. 
Surveys 62 and 97, 	Thurman Survey Abstract No. 2134, M.A. 
Swisner Survey No. 100, William Hensley Survey No. 534, 
Lewis Goodwin Survey No. 96, C.D. Fenrcn'kamp Survey No. 95, 
T.F. Decker Survey and the J. NaNey Survey and being more 
partieclarly uescrioed by metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING az a point being the Southwest corner of the William 
Hensley Survey No. 534 and the Southeast corner of the Lewis 
Goodwin Survey, No. 96, saic point being in the Norzh line of 
a 413.12 acre tract of land conveyed to La-jo Vista, Inc. cy 
C. Paul Harris by deed recorded in Volume 2274, Page 28 of the 
Deed Records of Travis County, Texas and zne South line of a 
695 more or less acre tract of land conveyed to Lego Vic._a, Zn 
by C. Paul Harris by deed recorded in Volume 1974, Rage 33 of 

th,- Deed Records of Travis County, Te.;s; 

along the South line of the W'17',, m, Hensley S;.rvey and 
along said North line of said, 413.12 acne tract and t:lz Soutn 
line of said 695 more cr less acre tract, Souzn E.33' East, 
2646.74 feet to tne Northeast corner of said 413.12 acre tract 
end tae occupied Northeast corner cf the 	 SI;isher Survey; 

of said Swisner 

	

tract 	20°52' 
413.12 acre tract, 
776.52 acre tract 

m-- -a1:1 Bend, :nc. 

	

1602 	Deed Fecords o' 

THENCE alenc zna occ 	East li 

tne East line 	 413.12 acre 
5C45.03 feet to 	Scuz'neast cor. 
said point :2.so oeang a point fcr 
of land conveyed tc Lago Vista, 
deed re- cc:de:1 in 	- 3656, Page 
Travis Ccunty, Texas; 

THENCE continuing 	 e East li..- 

South 23" 	 .CO feet to - 
v Carpb1 Survey, said point 

saii 776. 	F-Cf: 

Syisner S,Irvey 
corn,,r 	zne 

-int for corner of 

:ne S:._Itn 	' 	of sa.i O.pbo.. '=" 
, East, 162.5.2 fe: zc a point 	orne: zf said 77.52 

acre tract, said point also being t'ne niot 	znern corner 

54.7S acre tract of land conveyed to National Resort Co:-.7_:nit es, 

Inc. by Emerald Send, Inc. by deed recorded in Volume 4351, Fa;e 
2298 of the Deed Records of Travis County, Te.xas; 

; 14,4—  ( 

;4 

.1577 2160 
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(22) South 32'04' West, 71.23 feet to an angle pcint; 
(23) South 37'20' ::esz, 256.22 feet tc zn ance point; 
(24) South 19'35 West, 42.00 feet to an angle point; 
(25) South 0'49' East, 37.17 feet to an angle point; 
(26) South 22'47' East, 40.39 feet to a point in the North 

line of a 12.28 acre tract of land conveyed to C.D. Van 
C1eavey cace., recorded in Voltne 3483, Page 1915 of , 
Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; 	 (• 

THENCE with the North line of said 12.28 acre tract, North 
60'0' West, 195.97 feet to a point being the nost Easterly 
corner of E 339.39 acre tract of land conveyed to National 
Resort C=munizies, :no. by deed recorded in Volume 3913, Pa::e 
1194 of the Deed 9.eccrds of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE in a Southerly and Easterly direction along the East linc 
of said 369.39 acre tract the following nine (9) courses and 
distances: 

(1) South 20'33' West, 550.16 feet to an angle point; 
(2) South 20'23' West, 679.23 feet to an angle point; 
(3) South 20'32' West, 1725.37 -feet to an angle point; 
(4) South 20°25' West, 672.07 feet to an angle point; 
(5) South 15'03' West, 75.40 feet zo an angle point; 
(6) South 0'39' hest, 25.24 feet to an angle point; 
(7) South 6'57' East, 17.66 feet to an ancle point; 
(5) 	South 28'23' East, 63.64 feet co an angle point 
(9) North 79'39' East, 632.60 feet tc a point for corner; 

TEENCE South 50531  Last aìong said East line cE said 363.29 
acre tract ani 	 of a 1065.74 e.tre tract of ani  
conveyed to Nation _ 	 c.7.munities, :no., ne deed recorded 
in Volu_7-,e 4051, 	2298 of 	- Deed 	 of Travis 
Texas pass the 	,ast corner c_ 
feet to a pcin-  fcr c:ne:, sal-
1574.62 'eet =ro tne Southeast corner 

TriENCE the foils. 
	 three (23) 

(1) Sou" 
(2) Nor 
(3) North 373 hasz, 709. 

(4) "esz, 216.07 feet 
	-ic 

angl 	int; 
angle 	nt; (5) South 3325 Lesz, 415.2: 	
.gle (6) "4.'o'..:th '47 1  West. , 300.03 feet 	

an angle point; (7) S-..r..ith ' *02' •..esz, 394.87 feet 	
an angle point; (E) North 	,;;est, 422.50 feet 

(9) South 79'23' West, 33.72 feet to r angle point; 
(10) Soutn 26'07' East, 320.00 fePt to 	angle point; 

(11) South 81°03 West, 2:::63.92 feet to an ang-e point; 
(12) North .21'27 1  West, 629.96 feet tc an angle point; 

(13) .South 55'23' West, 630.00 feet to an angle point; 
(14) North 76°57' West, 420.00 feet to an angle point; 
(15) North 28°57' West, 900.00 feet tc an angle point; 
(16) South 80°48' West, 875.00 feet to an angle point; 
(17) South 26'27' East, 190.00 feet to an angle point; 

3 

acre tract, 
scant Nor::: 
	

WSE: 
1;1 1065.74 acre tract; 

es and distances: 

-1577 •<:22 



et 	poant on the 	rth line 
:r.t 	baint in the South line 
divJ.sion refd 	Scc:: 

"cunty, Texas, 
feet :cm the No 

	

(15) 	South 61°47 East, 430.00 feet to an angle point; 
(19) South 36°27' Last, 484.86 feet to an angle point; 
(20) Seutb 12°32' East, 3.26.49 feet to a:. angle point; 
(21) South 36'28' West, 245.00 fee: to an angle point; 

	

,(22) 	South 87°23' WcS-t, 2881.59 feet to an angle point; 
(23) No-th 3019' West, 419.17 feet t.o an angle point, 

said point being in.the West line of said 1065.74 
acre tract, saLd point also being in the East line 
of Emerald Bend Section Cnc, a subdivision recorded 
in Book 36, Page 2 of the Plat Pecords of Travis 
County, Texas, said toint being distant North 0°49' 
West, 948.90 feet from the Southwest corner of said 
1065.74 acre tract and the Southeast corner of said 
Emerald Bend Section One; 

THENCE the following ten (10) courses and distances; 

28°22' 	637.95 feet to an angle point; West, 
52°28' 	546.46 feet to an angle point; West, 
89°41' 	528.56 feet to an angle point; West, 
84°54' 	1184.17 feet to an angle point; West, 
66°29' 	132.09 f_eet to an angle point; West, 
66'21' 	477.21 feet to an angle point; West, 
34'04' 	443.45 feet to an angle point; West, 
31001' 	419.22 feet to an angle point; west, 
10'21' 	1203.37 feet to an angle point; West, 

North 2°57' East, 643.00 feet to an angle point, said 
point being in the North line of said Emerald Bend Section 
One, said point also being in the South line of a 63.06 
acre tract, said 63.06 acre tract being part of a 1224 
more or less acre tract ctnveyed to L.L. Y.cCandless 
deed recorded in Vol.:m: 2411, ?age 30 of the Ceed R 	ds 
of Travis County, Texas, said point being distant South 
e3'53' East, 462.86 fee= from the Ncrth..:est corner of 
said Et.eraid Bend Secticn 'One and 'are Southwest corner of 
said 6.3.C6 acre tract; 

THENCE North 7°22'2C" East, 113E. 
	feet to an angle point; 

South 
South 
North 
North 
North 
North 
Nprth 
North 
North 

THENCE North c 	last, 750.00 
of said 63.06 aore tratt, said 
of Emerald lend Eettioh 
Ra,:7- 16 cf the ?1,-: :,7 cords 
being distant 	71°31' East, 
corner of said ¿3.2E acre tract; 

THENCE contin in; . rth 26°29' East, 1580.50 fet to an ngle point; 

THENCE Ncr,h 42'45' East, 1 290.47 c".et to an angl ooint; 

THENCE North 28°11'15' East 89.30 feet to a pcint in the Northeast 
line of said Emerald Bend Section T•,:c said point also being in the 
Southwest line of a 317.89 acre tract conv,eyed co National Resort 
Communities, Inc. 'by deed recorded in Volume 4051, Page 2298 of the 
Deed Records of Travis County, Texas, said point being distant South 
49°0115" East, 249.58 feet from the Northwest corner of said Emerald 

4 
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South line cf a tracc of lanc.convoye:, to Ear-:: Cor' ration 
by deed recorded in Vc 	,e 4099, Page 2305 c' tne eedr-ceeords or 
Travis CoA.:nty, Texas: 

THENCE along the South and West lines of said property convovr,d 
said S.r-5 Corporation tne following fifteen;15) 'courses 
and dist.ances: 

North 16'53 West, 725.42 feet to an angle point; 
North 14'40' West, 56.15 feet te En angle pc 
North 6°41' East, 176.1 feet to an angle point; 
North 23=0,7' West, 90.2 feet to an angle point; 
South 76°24' West, 16e.S fer,t to ar. ancle co,nt; 
North , 	'9 West, 456.6 feet to an angle point; "'  
North 27'11' West, 86.9 feet to an angle point: 
North 42'2E' East, 150.8 feet to an angle point; 
North 74'13' East, 294.2 feet to an angle point; 
North 39°55' West 205.2 feet tc an angle point 
North 63'46' East 278.8 feet to an angle point; 
North 73'59' West, 57.7 feet to an angle point; 
North 67015' East, 373.0 feet to an angle point; 
North 21°37' East, 211.5 feet to an angle point; 
North 18'4545" East, 466.64 feet to an angle point; 
'ntersect4 on with the contour 715 feet acove Mean 
Sea Level as determined from bench marks established 
by the United State Geclogical Survey; 

THENCE along sad,  715 foot contour the following sixteen (16) 
courses and distances: 

angle-peiht: 
ancle point; 
ncle peint; 
angle point; 
angle point; 
angle point; 

pcint; 

co'nt; 

,of said -'' foot 
of land 	nveed 

County, 	s; 

THENCE along said West line of said Settegast tract, North 22° 
32' East, 112.54 feet to a point of intersestion with said 715 
foct contour; 

-THENCE along said 713 foot contour the following twenty four (24) 
courses and distances: 

6 

North 43°29' 
North 62'24' 
South 30°34' 
South 19°47' 
South 60'51' 
South 87'2E' 
North 72'35' 
North 5C=49' 
Norzn 37'46' 
North 2257' 
North 54'42' 
North 71'25' 
North 66'49' 
South 7439' 
North 623'27' 
North 79'20' ' 

Wes:, 136.47 feet co an 
est, 129.98 feet to an 
West, 160.7 feet to an 
West, 160.49 feet tc an 
West, 167.94 feet tc an 
West, 117.33 feet to an 

127.9 feet tc 
:;Est, 110.66 feet to 

W',23-4 , 102.93 feat to 
West, 114.44 feet tc 

, 110.4 feet to an 
149.09 feet to 
135.0 feet-  to an 
93.22 feez te an 
195.19 feet to 

, 144.04 feet 
cur with the 

o Sintz J. Sett 
EiC of the 

intersection 
of a tract 

-1577 2165 
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North 
North 
North 
Soutn 
Souzh 
Nortn 
North 
North 

Itwe 	 roe 
310 0_, 30 West, 65.07 feet to a:. ,ngle point; 
49°3340" West, 62.19 feet to a point for corner; 
20°1330" East, 572.59 feet to a point for corner; 
68°44' East, 1547.34 feet to an angle point; 
69° 1950" East, 542.9e fee` to a point for corner; 
200 12' 45" East, 676.33 feet to an angle point; 
20°56' East, 1081.34 feet to en angle point; 
20'4145" East, '4102.59 feet to an angle point; 

(16) North 20°52' East, 1443.61 feet to an angle point; 
(17) North 2354' East, 1255.6 feet to a point being the 

Northwest corner of said tract; 
(18) South 69°4120" East, 1465.42 feet to an angle point; 
(19) Soutn 690 57 1 20" East, 714.48 feet to an angle point; 
(20) South 690 3710' East, 3044.81 fee: to a point being 

the Northeast corner of said tract; 
(21) South 200 2050" West, 166.56 feet to an angle point; 
(22) South 21°0950" West, 1275.32 feet to an angle point; 
(23) South 210 2820" West, 1364.92 feet to an angle point; 
(24) South 2100125" West, 877.03 feet to an angle point; 
(25) South 21°2645" West, 864.68 feet to an angle point; 
(26) South 21°0230" West, 683.54 feet to a point for corner; 
(27) South 70019' East, 429.85 feet to a point for corner; 
(28) South 21° 1325" WEst, 47E-69 feet to an angle point; 
(29) South 210 1530" West, 1222.37 feet to an_angle point; 
(30) Soutn 21'5430" West, 1109.36 feet to an angle point; 
(31) South 2203340" West, 1208.51 feet to a pcinz in the 

North l'ne of F.M. Highway 1431, 100 feet wide, said 
point being on the arc of a curve the center of wnicn 
bears Nortn 400 5635" East, 523.14 feet; 

THENCE along the North and East line of said F.M. Hi_hwcv 1431, 
along the arc of a curve to the rignt having a radius of 523.14 
feet, an arc istance 130.30 feet to a coin: or tangency; 

THENTE Nortn 34°47 1"2," West, 90.9 feet zt 	point of curve; 

THENCE along the arc of a curve to zhe left havi 	radius cf 
623.13 feet, an arc distance of 339.14 feet tt a :oinc of tangen ; 

THENCE NC.TT.:: 55°3610" West, 46.7 fee: tc a point of curve; 

THENCE alo 	zne arc cf a curve to the rignt having a radius of 
427.67 feat, an arc distance of 330. 	feet tc a point cf 	.gency; 

7EENCE North 	1'41 
	

West, 460.31 
	

a point; 

:11E::CE south 	'18' 	 oo:rc on the West 
line of F.M. 	y 1431; 

THENCE South 46'47' West, 876.65 feet tc a point on :he North 
line cf said 695 r7tre or less acre tract conveyed to Lago Vista 
Inc.; 
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Noe 
THENCE along the No. 1 lino of said 595 more or 'css acre 
tract the following _ve (5) courses and disoon__,s: 

(I) North 6E°1350" West, 1237.95 foot to en ang e point; 
(2) South 68'531 20" West, 472.17 Let: to an angle point; 
(3) North 72°o340" West, 413.00 fee: to an angle point; 
(4) South 87'45 West, 980.72 feet to an angle point; 
(5) South 87'59 1  30° West, 127.91 feet to tne Nortnwes: 

corner cf said 695 more or less acre tract; 

THENCE along the West line of said 695 more or less acre tract, 
South 21'2745" West, 6E2.13 feet to a point for corner, said 
point also being in the North line of said tract of land conveyed 
to Bar-K Corporation by deed recorded in Volume 4099, Page 2305; 

THENCE South 70°3720" 'East, 1905.84 feet to a point for corner of 
said 595 more cr less acre tract and the Nortneast corner of said 
Ear-K Corporation tract; 

THENCE along the West line cf said 695 more or less acre tract and 
the East line of said Bar-K Corporation tract tne following three 
(3) courses and distances: 

(I) So.:tn 22'2315" West, 852.31 feet to an ancle point; 
(2) South Cc35 1 15" West, 342.43 fe-et to an angle point; 
(3) South 701 1 45" East, 1110.54 feet to a point for corner of 

said. Ear-K Corporation tract, said point also Coin; in the 
North lino of Lego Vista 	 3, Rhaso Two, a subdivision 
recorded in Eook 33, Page 7 of the Plat Records cf Travis 
County, 	exas; 

THENCE along t 	äortr. line c said Lego 	sca Section 
7:4:3 and tãe äcr:r. line of .acc Vista Est.= 	Section :':ir: 
subdivision ra:crdeä in Eook 	 , Plat Re:or 
cf Travis Cs 	Te:-..os, N.orth 62 	Wast, 1344.33 foe: to 
the most 	. corner of said 	'.'ista Estates Section 

. 1:ine, sal 	nt al=0 oainc a :',:DIr. 	r corner of said 5ar-... 
Corporati  

THENCE alo 
the Soath 
West, 315. 
Section Nin 

th line of 	 Section " 
said Ear-K Cerpora::o. tract, South 

feet to tne most Western corner cf said Lag: 

THENCE a 
	 tn and ,:es: 
	

Lags ista 
Nine the 
	 '‹ (6) cc.ursos 	oistances: 

(1) Sos.th 63'09' East, 140.38 feet 	a point for corner; 
(2) So.;th 17'07' West, 15.04 foot to a point for corner; 
(3) So,.:th 7229' East, 119.5 feet to a boint on the arc 

of a curve the center of which boars South 68'16' 
East, 410.72 feet; 

(4) thence along the arc of a curve to the left havinc a 
radius of 410.72 feet an arc distance of 143.97 feet 
to a point of tangency; 

(5) So,:th 1°39' West, 220.0 feet to a point of curve; 
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Nor 
(6) thence a:Lc: 	the arc of a curv., to t-r1c .,ft  

a -afius of 214.42 feet am arc 6:stance of 258.22 
feet to a point in the West line cf saaf Lago Vista 
Section 3, Phase Two; 

THENCE along ene. West and South line of said Lago Vista Section 
3, Pnase Two the following feven (7) courses and dastances: 

(1) South 1431 West, 68.09 feet to a poant of curve; 
(2) thence alOng the arc of a curve to the left having 

a radius of 216.44 feet an arc distance od 173.64 
feet to a point of tancency; 

(3) South 31°27' East, 202.64 feet to an angle point; 
(4) North 82°20 1  East, 263.64 feet to a point of curve; 
(5) thence along th4,  arc of a curve to the right having 

a radius cf 30.31 feet, an arc distance of 39.23 feet 
, to a point of tangency: 

(6) South 23°24' East, 184.01 feet to an angle point; 	 (27) 
(7) South 18°38' East, 115.96 feet to a point of curve, 

'CD said point being in the West line of lago Vista 
Section One, a subdivision recorded in Book 8, Page 
85 of the Plat Records of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE alone the ';'est and North line of said Lago Vista Section 
One, the following four (4) courses and-dastanoes:- 

(1) Along the arc of a curve to the left. having a radius 
of 293.52 feet an arc distance of 55.32 feet to a 
point; 

(2) South 87°01' West, 258.64 feez to an angle polnt; 
(2) North 75°46' West, 331.66 feet to an angle point; 
(4) sou7Ln 53'51' West, 206.42 feet to a point bean; 

the Northwest corner of Lot 17, BiockA cf saaf 
Lego Vista Section Cne: 

-,'HENTE along the West lane of said Lot. 17, South 36=13' East 
193.12 feet 7-7, the Northwest corner of Lot 15 of said Elock 11; 

THENCE alo-,  ehe West line of saiL Lot tB, South 31'5E' 
233.30 feet 7:c the Soutnwest oorher ,f said 7 .ot 	 ooant 
being in the North line a5 Par;.: Drave, 50 feet wide; 

THENCE South 26=09' ;4est, 50.36 feet to 
	

Scuth 
line of said Park Drive, sea._ 	nt also 	:he 
corner of 	- :5 of self Elook . 

: 	alo:-.g 	West li7.e c.):.' ,=. ald Lo.: L3, Sc»zh 3.7 we 
242.26 feat to the Southwest oorner cf said - o: 13, aiâ point 
also being in the 1:orth line of Resubdavasion of Part cf Floo',: 
A, Lege Vista Section One, a subdivision recorded in Book ' , 
Page 46 of the Plat Records of Travis County, Texas: 
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THENCE along the Nortn line of said subdivision, North 
66'51' West, 90.0 foot to the :orth..:cst corner thereof; 

TH=. NC7' alonc 	West line of said subdivision South 
33'58' West, 14E7.47 feet to an ancie point; 

THENCE South 30'14' West, 87.6 feet to an eng e point; 

THENCE South 706 East, 41.65 feet zo the Southwest corner 
thereof; 

THENCE along the South line cf said suiDdivisich and tne 
South line cf sa:d aco Vista Section One the followinc 
six (6) courses and distances: 

239.43 feet to an angle point; 
609.04 feet to an angle point; 
273.9 feet to an angle point; 
273.28 feet cc an angle point; 

(5) South 6'06' East, 28.77 feet to an 	point, 
said point also being in the Scutn 	cz saia 
Lewis Goodwin Survey, No. 96.;_ 

(6) South 69'33' East along the South line of said 
Goodwin Survey, 86.3 feet to zhe Point cf Eeginning 
and containing 4325.95 acres. 

Hereby Certify that these field notes were pr:cared fro:n 
records con-7,14  by others alonz-  with actual surveys made 
on certain parcels of land and do not purporz to re by actual 
survey made on the ground of the total tract. 

W:TNESS MY ELN: 	SE.71 3 this the 26 th Eay cf July, 1972 

(1) South 59'36' East, 
(2) South 57°17' East, 
(3) South 58°34' East, 
(4) South 58°01' East, 

NATIONII.L PS .E: 
.4 
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IN ME MATTER OF T:15 CERTIFIC."-= 0: 

TRAVIS CCUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 	1 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUYTY OF TRAVIS 

The undersigned, Secretary of the Texas Water Rights 

Com.mission, hereby certifies that the attached is a full, true 

and correct copy of Crfer Upon Hearing of Petition To Create 

Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 1 and Order 

amending Commission Order of August 7, 1972, creating Cravis 

Co:Inty Municipal Utility District No. i, all on file in my 

office, in che roceedings had before- said Commilsion for :he 

crea-zion of the Travis County Municipal Ut±1jv District Ns. 1 

	

41/ - 	/7z- 1-671/4-1.V--0,AAVL/-tj 
Audrey Stranftman 
ecretarv, Iexas 	_ 	Commissaon 

.m — 	
TEXAS 

COUNTY C 	R2-XIS 

, 1973, A.,..:dray Stra.-,dtman 
cers ned authority, and sne 

ihsliriment for 	 s es 
contai 

Cn this 	ith 	of 
son be ore me, 

'gned tha 

-scribed -o 
197 	C. 

r 

, 

-o:arv Puhl: 

STATE CF TOrAS 	 CCIYM CI' TRAVIS 
I 1,,'ety cerIlfy 	lonlrumcnt waL FILED on the 

nate an; A" ;no ,,n,o 	h:Jc...,r, by 114; And ms drr;,. 
i'LEMRDID, la l'ac \rob re w.n. 	c Le romcd 
c. Tral,  s Caory, TZ.V.1, as 1,mci rort•ca t rre, on 

PAR 5 1973 

MAR 5 
.) 	 '0 '73 

tql7f CUM( 
1W,Vis COUNTY, l'D,A=.; 

• . 
• ) 

TRAV“ 
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: 	CITY OF LAGO VISTA 	EXHIBIT 'A. 
UTILITY SERVICE AREA 

PERIMETER FIELD VOTES OF 
TRAVIS COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY :1ISTRICT NO. 1 

OCT. 1991 . 

Being 4825.95 acres of land located in the W.A. Cook Survey No. 
100, Lewis Lindsay Survey No. 265; James Cantwell Survey No, 36, 
J.M. Puryear Survey No. 36, W.S. Iley Survey No, 641, George 
Johnson Survey No. 535, L.W. Simpson Survey No. 610, n. & O. 9.R.R. 
Co, Survey No. 35, J.K. Baldwin Surveys No. 36 and 609, D.,/, W.R.R. Co. 
Surveys 92 and 97, H.G. Thurman Survey Abstract No. 2134, M.A. 
Swisher Survey No. 100, William Hensley Survey No. 534, 
Lewis Goodwin Survey No. 96, C.D. Fehrenkamp Survey No. 95, 
T.F. Decker Survey and the J. Maxey Survey and being more 	/71- 
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point being the Southwest corner of the William 
Hensley Survey No. 534 and the Southeast corner of the Lewis 	

fi& 

Goodwin Survey, No. 96, said point being in the North line of 
a 413.12 acre tract of land conveyed to Lego Vista, Inc. by 
C. Paul Harris by deed recorded in Volume 2274, Page 28 of the 
Deed Records of Travis County, Texas and the South line of a 
695 more or less acre tract of land conveyed to Lego Vista, Inc. 
by C. Paul Harris by deed recorded in Volume 1974, Page 35 of 
the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE along the South line of the William Hensley Survey and 
along said North line of said 413.12 acre tract and the Soutn 
line of said 695 more or less acre tract, South 6933 East, 
2646.74 feet to the Northeast corner of said 413.12 acre tract 
and the occupied Northeast corner of the Mrs. N.A. Swisher Survey; 

THENCE along the occupied East line of said Swisher Survey and 
the East line of said 413.12 acre tract South 2052' West, 
5046.03 feet to the Southeast corner of said 413.12 acre tract, 
said point also being a point for corner of a 776.52 acre tract 
of land conveyed to Lago Vista, Inc. by Emerald Bend, Inc. by 
ieed recorded in Volume 3656, Page 1602 of the Deed Records of 
Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE continuing along the East line of said Swisher Survey 
South 2048' West, 328.00 feet to the Southwest corner of the 
Mary Campbell Survey, said point being a point for corner of 
sa1d. 776.52 acre tract; 

THENCE along the South line of said Campbell Survey, South 69' 
57' East, 153.50 feet to a point for corner of said 776.52 
acre tract, said point also being the'most Northern corner of a 
54.78 acre tract of land conveyed to National, Resort Communities, 
Inc. by Emerald Bend, Inc. by deed recorded in Volume 4051, Page 
2298 of the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; 

1. 
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• 
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THENCE along the occupied common line between the said Mary 
Campbell Survey and the W.A. Cook.Survey No. 100, said line 
also being the Northeast line of,sbA 54.78 acre tract the 
following two (2) courses and diitances: 

(1) South 6954 East, 2131.90 feet to an angle point; 
(2) South 68'38' East, 589'.34 feet to a point for corner; 

THENCE South 616' West, 62.32 feet to an angle point; 

THENCE South 42°4440" West, 254.00 feet to an angle point, 
said point being in the South line of a 10.52 acre tract of 
land conveyed to National Resort Communities, Inc. by Emerald 
Bend, Inc. by deed recorded in Volume 4051, Page 2298 of the 
Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE along the South line of said 10.52 acre tract, South 
7918' West, 135.96 feet to the Northeast corner of a 27.52 
acre tract of land conveyed to National Resdrt Communities, 
Inc. by G.A. Draper and wife by deed recorded in Vblume 3916, 
Page 509 of the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas, said 
point also being in the West line of a 50 foot County Road; 

THENCE along,the West line of said County Raad the following 
twenty six (26) courses and distances: 

(1)  South 6'24' East, 
(2)  South, 934' West, 
(3)  South 1435' West, 
(4)  South 2311' West, 
(5)  South 2751' West, 
(6)  South 3231' West, 
(7)  South 4227' West, 
(8)  South 38'155' West, 
(9)  South 31'50' West, 
(10)  South 2556' West, 
(11)  South 503' West, 
(12)  South 1655' East, 

(13)  South 38°19' East, 
(14)  South 37°32' East, 
(15)  South 3323' East, 
(16)  South 2740' East, 
(17)  South 1726' East, 
(18)  South 708' East 

(19)  South 229' iies-c, 
(20)  South 1508' west, 
(21)  South 44'24' West, 

93.18 feet to an angle point; 
440.69 feet to an angle point; 
54.27 feet to an angle point; 
75.59 feet to an angle point; 
76.15 feet to an angle point; 
68.97 feet to an angle point;; 
171.73 feet to an angle point; 
126.37 feet to an angle point; 
61.50 feet to an angle point; 
86.87 feet to an angle point' 
53.25 feet to an angle point; 
45.92 feet to an angle point; 
51.16 feet to an angle point; 
118.23 feet to an angle point; 
142.22 feet to an angle point; 
53.74 feet to an angle point: 
47.78 feet to an angle point; 
77.06 feet to an angle point; 
66.72 feet .to an angle point; 
31.11 feet to an angle point; 
138.83 feet to an angle point; 
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(22) South 32'04' West, 71.23 feet to en angle point: 
(23) South 3720 West, 256.22 feet to an angle point; 
(24) South 1935' West, 42.09 feet to an angle point; 
.(25) 	South 049' East, 37.17 feet to an angle point; 
(26) South 2247' East, 46.69 feet to a point in the North 

line of a 12.28 acrc tract of land conveyed to C.D. Van 
Cleave.by deed recorded in Volume 3483, Page 1915 of 
Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; 	 t. 

THENCE with the North line of said 12.28 acre tract, North 
600' West, 195.97 fcet to a point being the most Easterly 	 S7" 1, 
corner of a 369.39 acre tract of land conveyed to National 
Resort Communities, Inc. by deed recorded in Volume 3913, Page 
1194 of the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE in a Southerly and Easterly direction along the East line 
of said 369.39 acre tract the following nine (9) courses and 

550.16 feet to an angle point; 
679.23 feet to an angle point; 
1726.37 feet to an angle point; 
672.07 feet to an angle point; 
78.40 feet to an angle point; 

25.24 feet to an angle point; 
17.66 feet to an angle point; 
63.64 feet to an angle point 
652.60 feet to a point for corner; 

THENCE South 853' East along said East line of said 369.39 
acre tract and the East line of a 1065.74 acre tract of land 
conveyed to National Resort Communities, Inc., be dead recorded 
in Volume 4051, Page 2298 of the Deed Records of Travis County, 
Texas pass the Southeast corner of said 369.39 acre tract, 961.57 
feet to a point for corner, said point being distant North 853' West 
1574.82 feet from the Southeast corner of said 1065.74 acre tract; 

THENCE the following twenty three (23) courses and distances: 

(1) South 8252' West, 534.08 feet to an angle point; 
(2) North 86221  West, 300.00 feet to an angle point; 
(3) North 3719' West, 709.89 feet to zJI angle point; 
(4) South 125635" West, 248.07 feet to an angle point; 
(5) South 3026' East, 435.35 feet to an angle point; 
(6) South 740' West, 300.03 feet to an angle point; 
(7) South 6302' West, 394.87 feet to an angle point; 
(8) North 6136' West, 422.50 feet to an angle point; 
(9) South 7923' West, 83.72 feet to an angle point: 
(10) South 2607' East, 320.00 feet to an angle point; 
(11) South 8108' West, 2563.92 feet to an angle point: 
(12) North 2027' West, 629.9i feet to an angle point; 
(13) .South 5533' West, 630.00 feet to an angle point: 
(14) North 76'57' West, 420.00 feet to an angle point; 
(15) North 3857' West, 900.00 feet to an angle point; 
(16) South 8048' West, 875.00 feet to an angle point; 
(17) South 26°27' East, 190.00 feet to an angle point; 
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distances: 

(1)  South 2033' West, 
(2)  South 2028' West, 
(3)  South 2033' West, 
(4)  South 2028' West, 
(5)  South 1508' West, 
(6)  South 039' West, 
(7)  South 657' East, 
(8)  South 2828' East, 
(9)  North 79°39' East, 



(18) South 6147 East, 430.00 feet to an angle point; 
(19) South 3627' East, 484.86 feet to an angle point; 
(20) Sout)- 1232' East, 326.49 feet to al, angle point; 
(21) South 36°28' West, 245.00 feet to an angle point; 

.(22) 	South 8723' West, 2881:59 feet to an angle point; 
(23) North 30°19' West, 419.17 feet to an angle point, 

said point being in.the West line of said 1065.74 
acre tract, said point also being in the East line 
of Emerald Bend Section One, a subdivision recorded 
in Book 36, Page 2 of the Plat Records of Travis 
County, Texas, said point being distant North 0'49' 
West, 948.90 feet from the Southwest corner of said 
1065.74 acre tract and the Southeast corner of said 
Emerald Bend Section One; 

THENCE the following ten (10) 

(1) South 2822' West, 637.95 feet to an angle point; 
(2) South 8228' West, 546.46 feet to an angle point; 
(3) North 8941' West, 528.56 feet to an angle'point; 
(4) North 8454' West, 1184.17 feet to an angle point; 
(5) North 6629' West, 138.09 feet to an angle point; 
(6) North 66°21' West, 477.21 feet to an angle point; 

(8) N'orth 3101' West, 
(7) North 3404' West, 

419.22 feet tO an angle point; 
443.45 feet to an angle point; 

North 1021' West, 1208.37 feet to an angle point; (9)  
North 257' East, 643.00 feet to an angle point, said (10)  
point being in the North line of said Emerald Bend Section 
One, said point also being in the South line of a 63.06 
acre tract, said 63.06 acre tract being part of a 1224 
more or less acre tract conveyed to L.L. McCandless by 
deed recorded in Volume 2411, Page 30 of the Deed Records 
of Travis County, Texas, said point being distant South 
83°53' East, 462.86 feet from the Northwest corner of 
said Emerald Bend Section One and the Southwest corner of 
said 63.06 acre tract; 

courses and distances; 

THENCE North 72220" East, 1186.83 feet to an angle point; 

THENCE North 2629' East, 750.90 feet to a point on the North line 
of said 63.06 acre tract, said point also being in the South line 
of Emerald Bend Section Two, a subdivision recorded in Book 36, 
Page 16 of the Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, said point 
being distant South 7131' East, 430.00 feet from the Northwest 
corner of said 63.06 acre tract; 

THENCE continuing North 2629' East, 1580,00 feet to an angle point; 

THENCE North 42'45' East, 1290.47 feet to an angle point; 

THENCE North 381115" East 88.30 feet to a point in the Northeast 
line of said Emerald Bend Section Two said point also being in the 
Southwest line of a 317.89 acre tract conveyed to National Resort 
ComMunities, Inc. by deed recorded in Volume 4051, Page 2298 of the 
Deed Records of Travis County, Texas, said point being distant South 
490115" East, 249.88 feet from the Northwest corner of said Emerald 
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• Bend Section Two, ano le most Westerly co:ner of -.aid 317.89 
acre trict; 

THENCE continuing North 38111 1S" Eact, 311.47 feet to an angle 
point; 

THENCE North 5311.1 15" East, 398.6G feet to an angle point; 

THENCE North 59°1115" East, 110.52 feet to an angle point; 
said point being in the North line of said 317.89 acre tract 
also being in the SoUthwest line of a tract of land conveyed 
to National Resort Communities, Inc. by deed recorded in Volume 
4216, Page 2270 of the Deed Reocrds of Travis.County, Texas, said 
point being distant South 4602 East, 460.39 feet from the North- 
vest corner of said 317.89 acre tract and the Southwest corner of 
said tact conveyed to National Resort Communities, Inc., by 
deed recorded in Volume 4216, Page 2270; 

THENCE the following seven (7) courses and distances: 

North 62°17' 25" East, 743.36 feet to an angle point; 
North 411950" West, 713.53 feet to an angle point; 
North 39°23' East, 1323.06 feet to an angle point; 
South 521840" East, 1131.31 feet to an angle point; 
North 410' East, 623.11 feet to an angle point; 
Noryl 15°23' East, 614.44 feet to an angle point; 
North 414315" East, 80.11 feet to an angle point, 
said point being in the North line of said tract of land 
conveyed to National Resort Communities, Inc., by said 
deed recorded in Volume 4216, Page 2270, said line also 
being'in the South line of 776.52 acre tract of lane conveyed 
to Lego Vista, Inc., be deed recorded in Volume 3656, Page 
1602 of the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE the following ten (10) courses and distances: 

NOrth 
North 
North 
South 
North 
North 
North 
North 
North 
North 
said point being in the North line of the J. Maxey 
Survey and the South line of the Lewis Goodwin Survey 
No. 96, 

THENCE North 69°33' West, 169.63 feet to an angle point, said point 
being in the original bank of the Colorado River, said point also being 
the Northwest corner of said J. Maxey Survey and also being an angle 
point in the South line of the Lewis Goodwin Survey No. 96; 
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20'17'. West, 330.00 feet to an angle point; 
14°43' East, 1900.00 feet to an angle point; 
64°53' East., 1400.00 feet to an angle point; 
8037' East, 1060.00 feet to an angle point; 
1523' East, 680.00 feet to an angle point; 
44'0120" East, 255.51 feet to an angle pOint; 
46'05 1  East, 69S,75 feet to an.angle point; 

34°47' East, 670.00 feet to an anile Point; 
2507' East, 1340.00 feet to an angle point; 
637' East, 760.00 feet to an angle point, 



Soutil .11r112. • 

.by deed recorded in Vc me 4099, Page 2305 of the -Ica rcecul, 
Travis County, Texas: 

,THENCE along the South and West lines of said property conveyed to 
said Bar-E Corporation the following fifteen(15) courses 

. and distances: 

North 1653' Vest, 725.42 feet to an angle point; 
North 1440' West, 58.18 feet to an Angle point; 
North 6'41' East, 176.1 feet to An angle point; 
North 230:7' West, 90.2 feet to an angle point; 
South 7824' West, 168.8 feet to an angle point: 
North 1119' West, 458.6 feet to an angle point; 
North 2711' West, 88.9 feet to'an angle point; 
North 4228' East, 180.8 feet to an angle point; 
North 7413' East, 294.2 feet to an angle point; 
North 3955' West 206.2 feet to an angle point) 
North 6348' East 278.8 feet to an angle point: 
North 73°59' West, 57.7 feet to an angle point: 
North 67°15' East, 373.0 feet to an angle point; 
North 2137' East, 211.5 .feet to an angle point; 
North 18°4545" East, 468.64 feet to.an  angle point 
intersection with the contour 715 feet above Mean 
Sea Level as determined from bench marks establishe 
by the United State Geological Survey; 

THENCE along said 715 foot contour the following sixteen .(16) 
courses and distances: 

(1)  
(2)  

. (3, 
(4)  
(5)  
(6)  

(7)  
(8)  
(9)  
(10)  
(11)  
(12)  
(13)  
(14)  
(15)  

136.47 feet to an angle-point; 
129.98 feet to an angle point; 
160.7 feet to an angle point; 
160.49 feet to an angle point; 
187.94 feet to an angle point; 
117.33 feet to an angle point; 
127.9 feet to an angle point; 
110.66 feet to an angle point; 

102.95 feet to an angle point; 
114.44 feet to an angle point; 

110.4 feet to an angle point; 
149.09 feet to an angle point; 
135.0 feet to an angle point; 

South 74°59' West, 93.22 feet to an angle point; 
North 8827' West, 195.19 feet to an angle point; 
North 7920' West, 144.04 feet to a point of intersection 
of said 715 foot contour with the Nest line of a tract 
of land conveyed to Hintz J. Settegast by deed recorded 
in Volume 573, Page 510 of the Deed Records of Travis 
County, Texas; 

THENCE along said West line of said Settegast tract, North 22! 
32' East, 112.54 feet to a point of intersection with said 715 

foot contour; 

.THENCE along said 715 foot contour the following twenty four (24) 
courses and distances: 

Exiiibit 
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North 43'29' 
North 6224' 
South 0034' 
.South 1947' 
South 80°51' 
South 87°38' 
North 7235' 
North 58491  
North 3746' 
North 22°57' 
Nortlr54'421  
North 7125' 
North 66°49' 

West, 
West, 
West, 
West, 
West, 
West, 
West, 
West; 
West, 
West, 
west,-
West, 
Nest, 



(1) North b.0'..))* 1;c; 
(2) South 84!,1' Zest, 
(3) North 8305 East, 
(4) North 7122 East, 
(5) North 6817' East, 
(6) North 1601' Cast, 
(7) North 5841' East, 
(8) North 4946' East, 
(9) North 7254' East, 
(10) North 4656' East, 
(11) North 37°19' Vest, 
(12) South 88'4-7' West, 
(13) South 3448' West, 
(14) South 6446' West, 
A15) South 66'01' West, 
(16) North 7841' West, 
(17) south 64'02' West, 
(18) South 8037' West, 74.21 feet to an angle point; 
(19) South 89°14' West, 104.87 feet to an angle point; 
(20) North 10'0' West, 75.16 feet to an angle point; 
(21) North 1932' East, 77.62 feet to an angle point; 
(22) North 4219' West, 130.5 feet to an angle point; 
(23) South 3359' West, 124.02 feet to an angle point; 
(24) South 7018' West, 115.14 feet to a point of inter-

section of said 715 foot contour and said West line 
of said Settegast tract; 

THENCE following the West line of said Settegast tract the 
following ten(10) courses and distances; 

14,;.0 • 

192.73 feet to an 
224.55 feet to an 
147.2 feet to an 
206.72 feet to an 
125.06 feet to an 
110.0 feet to an 
155.71 feet to an 
112.0 feet to ;An 
199.6 feet to an 
136.04 feet to an 
96.72 feet to an 
154.19 feet to an 
158.85 feet to an 
101.02 feet to an 
128.15 feet to an 
167.19 feet to an 

angle point; 
a lc point; 

ang.te point; 
angle point; 
angle point; 

angle point; 
angle point; 
angle point; 
angle point: 
angle point; 
angle point; 
angle point; 
angle point; 
angle point; 
angle pOint;' 
angle point; 

(1)  North 20'42' East, 
(2)  Nortll 2531' East, 
(3)  North 16'18' East, 
(4)  North 2041' East, 
(5)  North 2147' East, 
(6)  North 17°19' East, 
(7)  North 2514' East, 
(8)  North 19'34' East, 
(9)  North 1710'• East, 
(10)  North 2057' East, 

of said West 1in6 

120.19 feet to an angle point; 
22.57 feet to an angle point; 
79.97 feet to an angle point: 
627.19 feet to an angle point; 
120.47 feet to an angle point; 
518.36 feet to an angle point; 
28.28. feet to an angle point; 
306.69 feet to an angle point; 
82.81 feet to an angle point; 
868.12 feet to a point of intersection 
and said 715 foot contour line. 

THENCE North 46°2730" East, 384.61 feet to a point in the Southwest 
'line of a tract of land conveyed to Bar-K Corporation by deed re- 
corded in Volume 4099, Page 2316 of- the Deed Records of Travis 
County, Texas; 

THENCE along said tract conveyed to Bar-l< Corporation the following 
thirty one (31) courses and distances: 

(1) North 45430" West, 25.51 feet to an angle point; 
(2) North 14139' West, 28.38 feet to an angle point; 
(3) North 303130" West, 42.88 feet to an angle point; 
(4) North 2456' East, 164.16 feet to an angle point; 
(5) North 32°3730" East, 57.68 feet to an angle point; 
(6) North 134620" East, 39.54 feet to an angle point; 
.(7) North 2094 40" East, 39.54 feet to an angle point; 

. 
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(8) North 31°0.) JO" West, 65.17 feet to al. .ingle point; 
(9) North 193340" West, 62.19 feet Lo a point for corner; 

(10) North 201330" East, 572.59 feet to a point for corner; 
(11) South 6844 East, 1547.34 feet to an angle point; 
(12) South 691950" East, 512.9a feet to a point for corner; 
(13) North 2012' 45" East, 678.33 feet to an angle point; 
(14) North 2056' East, 1081.34 feet to an angle point; 
(15) North 204145" East, 4102.59 feet to an angle point; 
(16) North 2052' East, 1443.61 feet to an angle point; 
(17) North 2354' East, 1255.6 feet to a point being the 

Northwest corner of said tract; 
(18) South 694120" East, 1485.43 feet to an angle point; 
(19) South 69°5720" East, 714.48 feet to an angle point; 
(20) South 69'37110" East, 3044.81 feet to a point being 

the Northeast corner of said tract; 
(21) South 202050" West, 166.56 feet to an angle point) 
(22) South 210950" West, 1275.32 feet to an angle point; 
(23) South 212820" West, 1364.92 feet to an angle point; 
(24) South 21°0125" West, 877.03 feet to an angle point; 
(25) South 212845" West, 864.68 feet to an angle point; 
• (26) South 21°0230" West, 683.54 feet tb a point for corner; 
(27) South 7019' East, 429.95 feet to a point for corner; 
(28) South 211325" West, 478.69 feet to an angle point; 
(29) South 211530" West, 1222.37 feet to an angle point; 
(30)*South 215430" West, 1109.36 feet to an angle point; 
(31) Sout,h 223340" West, 1208.51 feet 5o a point in the 

North line of F.M. Highway 1431, 100 feet wide, said 
point being on the arc of a curve the center of which 
bears North 405635" East, 523.14 feet; 

THENCE along the North and East line of said F.M. Highway 1431, 
along.the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 523.14 
feet, an arc distance 130.30 feet to a point of tangency; 

THENCE North 344710" West, 90.9 feet to a point of curve; 

THENCE along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 
623.13 feet, an arc distanpe of 339.14 feet to a point of tangency; 

THENCE North 655810" West, 48.7 feet to a point of curve; 

the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 
an arc distance of 390.26 feet to a point of tangency; 

134110" West, 460.31 feet to a point; 

761850" West, 100 feet to a point on the West 
Highway 1431; 

4647' West, 876.65 feet to. a point on the North 

695 more or less acre tract conveyed to Lego Vista 

8 
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THENCE along 
427.67 feet, 

THENCE North 

THENCE South 
line of F.M. 

THENCE South 
line of said 
Inc; 

10  



THENCE along the No. 1 line of said 695 more or 'ess acre 
tract the following .ive (5) courses and distan...ts: 

(1) North 681350" West, 1237.96 feet to an angle point; 
(2) South 685020" West, 472.17 feet to an angle point; 
(3) North 725340" West, 413.60 feet to en angle point; 
(4) South 8745 Vest, 980.72 feet to an angle point; 
(5) South 87'59' 30" West, 1207.91 feet to the Northwest 

corner of said 695 more or less acre tract; 

THENCE along the West line of said 695 more or less acre tract, 
South 2127'45" West, 688.13 feet to a point for corner, said 
point also being in the North line of said tract of land conveyed 
to Bar-K Corporation by deed recorded in Volume 4099, Page 2305; 

THENCE South 703730" East, 1905.84 feet to a point for corner of 
said 695 more or less acre tract and the Northeast corner of said 
• Bar-K Corporation tract; 

THENCE along the West line of said 695 more or less acre tract and 
the East line of said Bar-K Corporation'tract the following three 
(3) courses and distances: 

*(1) South 222315" west, 852.31 feet to an angle point; 
• (2) South 00515" West, 342.43 feet to an angle point; 

(3) South 70145" East, 1110.54 feet to a point for corner of 
said.Bar-K Corporation tract, said point also being in the 
North line of Lego Vista Section 3, Phase Two, a subdivision 
recorded in Book 30, Page 7 of the Plat Records of Travis 
Countx, Texas; 

THENCE along the North line of said Lago Vista Section 3, Phase 
Two and the North line of Lago Vista Estates Section Nine, a 
subdivision recorded in Book 52, Page 98 of the Plat Records 
of Travis County, Texas, North 6827' West, 1344.33 feet to 
the most Horthern corner of said La.go Vista Estates Section 

Nine, said point also.being a point for corner of said Bar-K 
Corporation tract; 

THENCE along the North line of said Lego Vista Section Nine and 
the South line of said Bar-K Corporation tract, South 6822' 
West, 315.11 feet to the most Western corner of said Lego Vista 
Section Nine: 

THENCE along the South and West line of said Lego Vista Section 
Nine the following six (6) courses and distances: 

(1) South 6509' East, 140.38 feet to a point for corner; 
(2) South 1707' West, 15.04 feet to a point for corner; 

(3) South 7229' East, 119.0 feet to a point on the arc 
of a curve the center of which bears South 6816' 
East, 410.72 feet; 

(4) thence along the arc of a curve to the left having a 
radius of 410.72 feet an arc distance of 143.97 feet 

to A point of tangency; 
(5) South 1°39' West, 220.0 feet to a point of curve/ 

9 
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THENCE along 
6851 West, 

THENCE along 
33°58' West, 

THENCE South 

THENCE South 
thereof; 

the North line of said subdivision, North 
90.0 feet to the Northwest corner thereof; 

the West line of said subdivision South 
1487.47 feet to an angle point; 

3014' West, 87.6 feet to an angle point; 

706' East, 41.65 feet to the Southwest corner 

THENCE along the South line of said subdivision and the 
South line of said Lago Vista Section One the following 
six 	(6) 	courses and distances: 

(1)  South 	59°36' 	East, 	239.43 feet to an angle point; 
(2)  South 57°17' 	East, 	609.04 	feet to an angle point; 
(3)  South 58°34' 	East, 	273.9 	feet to 	an 	angle point; 
(4)  
(5)  

South 5801' 	East, 	273.28 	feet 	to an angle point; 
South 	806' 	East, 	28.77 	feet 	to an angle point, 1 , 

• snid point also being in the South line of said 0 
Lewis Goodwin Survey, No. 	96; tip 

(6)  South 69°33' 	East along the South line of said 
Goodwin Survey, 	86.3 feet to the Point of Beginning 
and containing 4825.95 acres. 

I Hereby Certify that these field notes ware prepared from 
records compiled by others along with actual sdrveys made 
on certain parcels of land and do not purport to be by actual 
survey made on the ground of the total tract. 

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this the28th Day of J,uly, 1972 

NATIONAL RESORT COM:1UNITIES, INC. 
/1 

• / 	;if  if/r.  

v  Richard C.  tiange, PE 
31577 
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A DEVCRIPTION or 5.774 ACRES OUT OF THE D s W RAILROAD CO. SURVEY 
NO. 17 IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS; SAID 5.774 ACRES BEING A PORPIOV., 
OF A TRACT DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO STARR HOMES RECORDED IN VOLUWC 
6771, 'AGE 1452 or THE TRAVIS COUNTY DEED RECORDS) SAID 5.774 
ACRES BEING MORE FULLY DESCRIBED As roLLowsi 

BEGINNING at an iron pin found at the northwest corner of T.H. 1431 
and Lohnann Crossing Road for the most easterly corner of the herein 
described tractl 

THENCE, along the north right-of-way line of said Lohmann Crossing 
Poad, 473.87 feet along a curve to tha left having a radius of 
500.00 feet, an internal angle of 340  22 30, and a chord bearing 
S 550  SO' 10' W, 472.80 feet to an iron pin found for the most 
southerly corner of this tract; 

THENCE, leaving said Lehmann Crossing Road, 11 530  45' Di' 14, 315.62 
fest to nail found) 

THENCE, N 590 11' 20' W, 106.54 feet to an iron pin found for the 
most westerly corner of the herein described tract) 

THENCE, N 550  03' E, 172.52 feet to an iron pin found in the west 
lint of said P.M. 1431 for the most northerly corner hereof; 

THENCE, along said west right-of-way line, also being the east line 
hereof, 	050  33' 30" E, 451.14 feet to the PLACE Of BEGINNING 
containing 5.774 acres, sore or less. 

I, Timothy E. Haynie, a Rxqistered Public Surveyor, do hereby certify 
that the above description was prepared from an actual survey made 
on the ground under my supervision, and is true and correct to the 
beet of my knowledge and belief. 

This the 	175f.e(   day of rebriAery  , 1113. 

Timothy E. Waynie, B.P.S.rNo. ISSO 
State of Texas 

/I 8(43 
Exhibit   	

951 
 

page _Li__ of _11_ 
	MD 1.10••••••• 	 110•11.11..1.41.•1•1110.111•1111 IMO .••• 	.0 

• 'a: 
1 



P.0.8. 

. 
.1 	 :i (..z  
. .. 	 ,.. 

4 .cr 

o 

• c.) 

14 61.  

,  

SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY WRITTEN DESCRIPTION 

N
N

N  
LEGEND 	N 

A NAIL no. 	 4? • IRON PIN MI 

3-12 3792 

CLLL l's IOW 

se 

tired* Names. lee. 

8,013 952 'DTA 
!MI 

LIMP MYRON, 
+WM tiltu 

Ekhit?it 	 

nage 	 2./-..41 



EXHIBIT "B" 

FIELD NOTEU 

TRAVIS =ea  VC & ID no. 15 

The following dcLarlIce propcity - n portion of that 1663.71 acres oí lane, more 
or loss in Travis Couney as conveyed to C. Paul Harris by J.S. Wheoloss, Jr. on 
November 27, 1957, au recorded in County Court Recorde, Vol. 1881, paps 55%-h04, 
and comprising the folloving, toeuit: 

Approxinately 1465,82 acres out of the William Hensley Sureee No. 531i; 
Approxlmately 5.16 acres ont of the Dallas and Wichita Railroad Company Sure 

vey No. 97, north of the William Hensley Dervoyt 
Approximately 83.06 acres out of the Dallas and Uichita Survey No. 97, vest 

of the William Hensley Ssrvey; 

Two treat's, containing Appromemeleer 27.5 &area and 874 aeries, reepedbivele, 
out of the Lewis Gooduin Survey No. 96; 

Said tracts of lane lying in one contigoun body and being described by metes 
and bounds in Vol 1801, pages 391i-h04; 

The portion of thAt 1668.71 acres of land ao referred to above is all that 
portinn lying west of the Lohman Crossing Road uhich rune north and soute across 
the 1668.71 acreo, that vest porticn is herevith described as follaws: 

BEGINNING at an old rock mound, said mound being the original south's:est corner 
of the William Hensley Survey No. 53ti and the southeast corner of the Levis Good-
win Survey Ne. 96, the seutheest corner of that 737.19 acre tract of lend that ean 
conveyed to John F. Gilbert by Q.C. Teylor, et al, in accordance witha deed whiCh 
in recorded in Travis County Deed Records in Book 645, page 480, ard ths southeast 
corner of that 5.70 acre tract of lAnd ehicb was comeeyed by the Lower Colorado 
River Authority to John F. Gilbert in Accordance with a deed in Travis County Deed 
Records in Book 712, page 53b, and from vhich stake an original bearing tree, e 
cedar marked blaze bears S 70 deg W 30 van's; 

Thence with the fence (as found February, 190) and with the south line of 
the William Hensley Survey No. 531,, and also the aouth line of s 1461j.12 acre tract 
described in deed to J.S. Wheeless, Jr. and recorded in Vol. 761, Page 135 of the 
Deed Records of Travis County Tema, S 60 deg 370  E a diatanca of approxizately 
5152 feet to the vest line of the Lohman Croseing Road at its intersectinn vitt' 
the south line of the William Hensley Survey No, 531,; 

Thence vith tee vest lina of the Lohnans Croseing Road, following its mune 
dere in a narlaerly direction to the point of its intersection uith the fence and 
boundary line vhich has been desceibed in an agreement betveen Joihn ?. Gilbert 
and E. H. emart as recorded in Travis County Deed Records in Book 706, page 6; 

Thence alone the fence and boundary line vhich has been deccribed in an agree-
ment betveen John ?. Gilbert ard T.N. Seart as recoeded in T7.271S County Deed 
Records in Book 706, peen 6, N 60 deg W, 621.8 rams to a fence angle from vhich a 
stake the northwest corner of the WM, Hensley Survey as re-estAbliShed from its 
souttlleat corner by Orin E. Metcalfe basso N 30 deg 350  E 1j.9 -cares; 

Thence vith the fence S 77 deg 551  W 170.4 yams; 

Thence with the fazes W 61,1 dee 40? W 10.1 yarns; 

Thence with tbe fence N 83 dee 301  14 757.5 rates to the east line of Land now 
or formerly owed by Settogast; 	 s ,  

Thence vith the fence and with the eapt line of the Settegast tract of land 
S 30 deg 151  W 247.7 varas to fence career and the beginning corner set fourth in 
a desoription of a fence line aereeient by and betveen the Lover Colorado Rimer 
Authority and John F. Gilbert which is recorded in Travis County Deed Hecords in 
Book 712, pages 53h-533; 

Thence along the fence ehich is described in said agreement and aa found in 
place in Febreazy, 1943, S 62 dog 151  E 687.0 varas to a corner of stun; 

Thenoe vith the fence S 30 deg 401  W crossing the north line of the Lewis 
Goodvin Survey Me. 96 in all 307.2 'cares; 

Thence vith bbe fence 5 8 deg 301 14 122.7 vans; 

Thence vith the fem. 5 1 deg 351  W 402.0 verea to a poet on the north line 
of that 26.11 aore treat of 112"ilitoralimi Tiestlesot  in a deed from the 
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lover Colorado Rivor P..athoriy to John '2'. Gilbert as iecordod ii Travis County 
Deed Records in Bock 6555 7-Naga 117 1, and roi ihi.chilot.t the north.,:est corssr of 
afororentioned 7 37.19 acis tract ef land tini.dh uas echleysd to Jchn F. 1:di:mit 
by Q.C. Taylor, et al and the ronzosi. corner of net tract of land wh.„,•;. was 
conveyed to John F. Gilbert by L. Forl iz cosrdanc3 vith ri dce,115hich i: in 
Traria County Uled records in I co!::-0:;, ir.se 33C, bae...: ESC dee E 

Thence with the north line of ivi cfc.robaid 	acre txact .)f 11%;_i !: 60 
dog W 227.6 varas to the ncsqln 	cor.lor ci saw? a-.111 nertly.;:lat. cc.rmir 	thrst 
5.66 acre tract of 3.and called T-e:Lzt (b 	hc u. cc!Aoyed y tilt) L• 'olo. 
redo River Authority to John F, Ginevt rj n 	ar..1 z1 rec.x.-635 
in Travis County Deed Record!: 5n Sook ./12, ztEe a 5.314 -533 I 

Thence with the fence and 1,11.2.1'j11 north lino of 	ncle t1.1.:. of land 
TT 60 deg W 262.1 Tams; 

Thence S 77 deg VI 514 varas 	ar :T.nas to a 	ir jp  t.J.e 7 	fcoi; 	itour 
aa eutabliched fVom United f,:ater 0-sological S•2:1137 Bezch Ittks; 

Thence in a generally soutl,ca3i.ora and I:cull:It= ciLiectica, 	 :•.ho 
snanders of the said 715 foot (oniour lino for a  (11.5,1-..".ce ot 2. vnrz. 	f)ro 
or lees to a point in the 71 5 foo':, cont)ur line 	 N 1:3 deg C; -  
from the Place of Beginning; 

Thence S 46 deg 00? E a dit,t:...ive of 458 verav, ..v.lre or less t 
OP =num, and containing 6S,5 acros of ltni, vitro or leal. 

' 
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EXHIBIT "C* 

PROPERTIES LYING WITHIN THE INCORPORATED LIMITS 
OF THE CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

Being al 1 of La go Vi sta Es ta t e 5, Sections 2, 3 (pha ses 1 
through 4), 4, 5, 6, 6A, 7, and 9, Bar-K RariChes 1, 2, 3, 5, 
6, 7 (amended), 9, 12, 13, 17, and 18, as shown i n the plat 
maps r ecorded 1 n Books 11, 26, 30, 30, 32, 47, 48, 49, 49, 
50,52, 55, 57, 57, 82, 66, 58, 60, 61, 68, 66, 82, 
respecti v ely, Plat Records of Travi s County, Texas; and 
i ncluding the unplatted area south and west of Bar-K Ranches 
18 a nd ea st o f Ba r-K Ranches 6, excl udi ng the La go Vi sta 
Independent School Di strict proper ty to the north of Bar-K 
Ranches Section 6, but i ncluding the unplatted tracts north 
a nd ea st of Lohrmn Ford Roa d and south of Bar-K Ranches 
Section 6 and Lago Vi sta Estates Section 6 and i ncluding al 1 
of the remai nder of tha t unp la tted property con ti gi ous to 
Lago Vi sta Estates Section 1; Section 3, Phase 2; Section 9 
and Bar-K Ranches P la ts 1 and 2 as conveyed to Bar-K 
Corporation found of record i n Volume 4099, Page 2305 of the 
Real Proper ty Recor ds of Tra vi s County, Texa s, a nd bei ng 
more ful ly described i n the pl a t a ttached hereto. 

Being al 1 of Country Club Estates, Sections 6, 7, 9, Lago 
Yi sta Country Club Estates, Section 1, 2, 3, 4, 10, 10A, 11, 
12, and La go Yi sta Estates, Section 1 and 13, Tra vi s Plaza , 
a nd Ci vi c Center Addi ti on, a nd a s shown i n the plat maps 
recorded i n Books 47, 47, 48, 38, 40, 41, 44, 48, 49, 48, 
61, 8, 54, 39, 50 respecti vely, of the Plat Records of 
Tra vi s Coun ty, Texa s, and e x ten di ng westerly from the 
westerly boundary cif Country Cl ub Esta tes, Sect i on 6 and 
La go Vi sta Country Club Estates, Secti on 2 to the 670 	msl 
contour 1 ne, and i ncl udi ng therei n the tract owned by 
Tra vi s 	County Muni ci pa 1 	Uti 1 1 ty 	Di stri ct No. 	1, 	but 
excl udi ng the tract west of Lago Vi sta Country Club Estates, 
Secti on 2 owned by Lower Colorado Ri ver Authori ty, but 
i nc 1 udi ng the unplatted tract shown i n the northwest corner 
of Tra vi s Plaza, and east of the sai d Lower Colorado Ri ver 
Authori ty tract and i nc 1 udi ng the unplatted property lyi ng 

'northeast of Section 5, Country Club Estates and southwest 
of Secti on 6, Coun try Club Esta tes wi th a porti on of the 
western bounda ry bei ng a li ne begi nni ng at the northea st 
corner o f Lo t 740, Section 5, Country CI ub Esta t es and 
conti nui ng in a northea sterly 	di recti on to the corner of 
Lot 982A, Secti on 6, Country Club Estates, such land bei ng 
more fu ly shown i n the plat a tta ched hereto. 
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EXHIBIT "O* 

PROPERTIES LYING WITHIN THE INCORPORATED,LIMITS 
OF THE CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS 

Being all of Highland Lake Estates, Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 
7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 (as amende(1), 13, 14, 15 (as amended), 
16, 17, 18, 20, and 32, according to the plat hereof on file 
in Books 54, 52, 51, 51, 51, 54, 51, 51, 51, 58, 54, 52, 51, 
55, 54, 54, 54, 63, 68, respectively. Plat Records of 
Travis County, Texas; 	and including the area south and east 
of Boggy Ford Road, and containing unplatted areas south 
Highland Lake Estates„ Sections 30, 18, 17, 16, 7 and 6, 
extending on the south and west to a survey line shown on.  
the following surveys: W.S. Iley Survey No. 641, J.M. 
Puryear Survey No. 36, J.K. 8aldwin Survey No. 609, and 
being the same property shown on the plat attached hereto, 
and including The Oaks at Highland Lake Estates, Phases 1 
through 9, according to the Plat recorded in Books 78, 79, 
79, 81, 82, 83, 83, 84, 84, respectively, Plat Records of 
Travis County, Texas. 

Being all of Emerald Bend, Section 1, 2, and 2A, Highland 
Lake Estates, Sections 21, 22, 23, 24, 26 (as amended), 28, 
29, 30, 31, 34, and Country Club Estates Sections 5 and 8, 
as shown in the plat maps recorded in Books 36, 36, 78, 55, 
56, 58, 79, 79, 68, 76, 78, 68, 66, 78, 79 respectively, 
Plat Records of Travis County, Texas; and including 
unplatted property west of Sections 34 and 33, Highland Lake 
Estates consisting of 63.06 acres more or less, being 
described as Tract 1 of the seventh tract and more 
specifically described in a deed recorded in Volume 3329, 
Page 848 of the Real Property Records of Travis County, 
Texas, and west of Section 23, Highland Lake Estates and the 
unplatted area west of Country Club Estates Section 5 with 
the westerly boundary of said unplatted property being a 
line beginning at the northwest corner of Lot 22030, 
Highland Lake Estates, Section 22, and extending 
northeasterly to the southwest corner of Lot 759, Country 
Club Estates, Section 5, and the unplatted property north of 
Sections 24 and 29, Highland Lake Estates, with the westerly 
boundary of said unplatted property being a line beginning 
at the northwest corner of Section 24, Highland Lake Estates 
and extending northeasterly to the southwest corner of 
Section 22, Highland Lake Estates, as more fully shown in 
the map or plat attached hereto. 
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Attachment 8 

TPDES Permit No. WQ0011752001 



PERMIT NO. WQooll75200l 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
P.O. Box 13087 

Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

PERMIT TO DISCHARGE WASTES 
under provisions of Chapter 26 

of the Texas Water Code 

This major amendment 
supersedes and replaces Permit 
No. WQooll75200l issued 011 
April 26, 2012. 

City of Lago Vista 

whose mailing address is 

P.O. Box 4727 
Lago Vista, 'rexas 78645 

Nature of Business Producing Waste: Domestic wastewater treatment operation, SIC Code 
4952. 

General Description and Location of Waste Disposal System: 

Description: The City of Lago Vista Wastewater Treatment Facility consists of an activated 
sludge process plant using the conventional mode. Treatment units include bar screen, grit 
chamber, aeration basin, final clarifier, aerobic digester, sludge drying beds, belt filter press, 
and chlorine contact chamber. 

Interim I Phase: The draft permit authorizes the disposal of treated domestic wastewater 
effluent at a daily average flow not to exceed o.6o million gallons per day (MGD) via surface 
irrigated of 140 acres of golf course and 40 acres of non-public access land planted in cedar 
trees. The facility include two storage ponds with a total surface area of 8.76 acres and a total 
capacity of 103.4 acre-feet for storage of treated effluent prior to irrigation. Application rates 
to the irrigated land shall not exceed 3.45 acre-feet per year per acre irrigated for golf course 
irrigation and 4.72 acre-feet per year per acre irrigated for cedar trees irrigation. The 
irrigated crops include turf grass (golf course) and cedar trees (cedar breaks). 

Interim II Phase: The draft permit authorizes the disposal of treated domestic wastewater 
effluent at a daily average flow not to exceed 0.75 MGD via 140 areas of golf cource and 6o 
acres of non-public access land planted in cedar trees. The facility will include two storage 
ponds with a total surface area of 8.76 acres and a total capacity of 103.4 acre-feet for 
storage of treated effluent prior to irrigation. Application rates to the irrigated land shall not 
exceed 3.45 acre-feet per year per acre irrigated for golf course irrigation and 5.95 acre-feet 
per year per acre irrigated for cedar trees irrigation. The irrigated crops include turf grass 
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(golf course) and cedar trees (cedar breaks). 

Final Phase. The draft permit authorizes the disposal of treated domestic wastewater 
effluent at an annual average flow not to exceed 1.0 MGD via 140 areas of golf cource and 
ioo acres of non-public access land planted in cedar trees. The facility will include three 
stroage ponds with a total surface area of 14.7 acres and a total capacity of 170.4 acre-feet for 
storage of treated effluent prior to irrigation. Application rates to the irrigated land shall not 
exceed 3.45 acre-feet per year per acre irrigated for golf course irrigation and 6.37 acre-feet 
per year per acre irrigated for cedar trees irrigation. The irrigated crops include turf grass 
(golf course) and cedar trees (cedar breaks). 

Location: The dornestic wastewater treatment facility is located at 21001 Seminole Drive, in 
the City of Lago Vista, Travis County, Texas 78645 and the effluent disposal areas are located 
at 4616 Rimrock Drive, in the City of Lago Vista, Travis County, Texas 78645 and 21900 
Farm-to-Market Road 1431 West, in the City of Lago Vista, Travis County, Texas 78645. 
(See Attachment A.) 

Drainage Area: The wastewater treatment facility and disposal site are located in the 
drainage basin of Lake Travis in Segment No. 1404 of the Colorado River Basin. No 
discharge of pollutants into water in the state is authorized by this permit. 

This permit and the authorization contained herein shall expire at midnight on December 01, 
2019. 

ISSUED DATE: June 29, 2016 
	

(2-4/  

For the Commission 
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EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 

Conditions of the Permit: No discharge of pollutants into water in the state is 
authorized. 

A. Effluent Limitations 

Character: 	Treated Domestic Sewage Effluent 

Volume: 	Daily Average Flow — 0.60 IVIGD in the Interim I Phase 
Daily Average Flow — 0.75 MGD in the Interim 11 Phase 
Annual Average Flow-i.00 MGD in Final phase of the 
treatment System 

Quality: 	The following effluent limitations are required: 

Effluent Concentrations 
(Not to Exceed) 

Daily 7-Day Daily Single 
Parameter Average Average Maximum Grab 

mg/1 mg/1 mg/ mg/1 

Biochemical Oxygen 10 N/A N/A 35 
Demand (5-day) 
Total Suspended 15 N/A N/A 6o 
Solids 

The pH shall not be less than 6.o standard units nor greater than 9.0 
standard units. 

The effluent shall be chlorinated in a chlorine contact chamber to a residual 
of 1.0 mg/1 with a minimum detention time of 20 minutes. If the effluent is to 
be transferred to a holding pond or tank, re-chlorination prior to the effluent 
being delivered into the irrigation system will be required. A trace chlorine 
residual shall be maintained in the effluent at the point of irrigation 
application. 

B. Monitoring Requirements: 

Parameter 
Flow 
Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand (5-day) 
Total Suspended Solids 
pH 
Chlorine Residual 

Monitoring Frequency 
Continuous 
One/week (two /week*) 

One/week (two /week*) 
Two/month(one/week*) 
Continuous 

Sample Type 
Totalizing Meter 
Composite 

Composite 
Grab 
Recording meter 

*Final Phase monitoring frequency 
The monitoring shall be done after the final treatment unit and prior to 
storage of the treated effluent. If the effluent is land applied directly from the 
treatment system, monitoring shall be done after the final treatment unit and 
prior to land application. These records shall be maintained on a monthly 
basis and be available at the plant site for inspection by authorized 
representatives of the Commission for at least three years. 
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STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS 

This permit is granted in accordance with the Texas Water Code and the rules and other Orders 
of the Commission and the laws of the State of Texas, 

DEFINITIONS 

All definitions in Section 26.0 01 of the Texas Water Code and 30 TAC Chapter 305 shall apply to 
this permit and are incorporated by reference. Some specific definitions of words or phrases 
used in this permit are as follows: 

1. Flow Measurements 

a. Daily average flow - the arithmetic average of all determinations of the daily flow within a 
period of one calendar month. The daily average flow determination shall consist of 
determinations made on at least four separate days. If instantaneous measurements are 
used to determine the daily flow, the determination shall be the arithmetic average of all 
instantaneous measurements taken during that month. Daily average flow deterrnination 
for intermittent discharges shall consist of a minimum of three flow determinations on 
days of discharge. 

b. Annual average flow - the arithmetic average of all daily flow determinations taken within 
the preceding 12 consecutive calendar months. The annual average flow determination 
shall consist of daily flow volume determinations made by a totalizing meter, charted on a 
chart recorder and limited to major domestic wastewater discharge facilities with i. 
million gallons per day or greater permitted flow. 

c. Instantaneous flow - the measured flow during the minimum time required to interpret 
the flow measuring device. 

2. Concentration Measurements 

a. Daily average concentration - the arithmetic average of all effluent samples, composite or 
grab as required by this permit, within a period of one calendar month, consisting of at 
least four separate representative measurements. 

i. For domestic wastewater treatment plants - When four samples are not available in a 
calendar month, the arithmetic average (weighted by flow) of all values in the 
previous four consecutive month period consisting of at least four measurements shall 
be utilized as the daily average concentration. 

ii. For all other wastewater treatment plants - When four samples are not available in a 
calendar month, the arithmetic average (weighted by flow) of all values taken during 
the month shall be utilized as the daily average concentration. 

b. 7-day average concentration - the arithmetic average of all effluent samples, composite or 
grab as required by this permit, within a period of one calendar week, Sunday through 
Saturday. 

c. Daily maximum concentration - the maximum concentration measured on a single day, 
by the sample type specified in the permit, within a period of one calendar month. 
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3. Sample Type 

a. Composite sample - For domestic wastewater, a composite sample is a sample made up of 
a minimum of three effluent portions collected in a continuous 24-hour period or during 
the period of daily discharge if less than 24 hours, and combined in volumes proportional 
to flow, and collected at the intervals required by 30 TAC § 319.9 (a). For industrial 
wastewater, a composite sample is a sample made up of a minimum of three effluent 
portions collected in a continuous 24-hour period or during the period of daily discharge 
if less than 24 hours, and combined in volumes proportional to flow, and collected at the 
intervals required by 30 TAC § 319.9 (b). 

b. Grab sample - an individual sample collected in less than 15 minutes. 

4. Treatment Facility (facility) - wastewater facilities used in the conveyance, storage, 
treatrnent, recycling, reclamation and/or disposal of domestic sewage, industrial wastes, 
agricultural wastes, recreational wastes, or other wastes including sludge handling or 
disposal facilities under the jurisdiction of the Commission. 

5. The term "sewage sludge" is defined as solid, semi-solid, or liquid residue generated during 
the treatment of domestic sewage in 30 TAC Chapter 312. This includes the solids which 
have not been classified as hazardous waste separated frorn wastewater by unit processes. 

6. Bypass - the intentional diversion of a waste stream from any portion of a treatment facility. 

MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Monitoring Requirements 

Monitoring results shall be collected at the intervals specified in the permit. Unless 
otherwise specified in this permit or otherwise ordered by the Commission, the permittee 
shall conduct effluent sampling in accordance with 30 TAC §§ 319.4 - 319.12. 

As provided by state law, the permittee is subject to administrative, civil and criminal 
penalties, as applicable, for negligently or knowingly violating the Texas Water Code, 
Chapters 26, 27, and 28, and Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 361, including but not 
limited to knowingly making any false statement, representation, or certification on any 
report, record or other document submitted or required to be maintained under this permit, 
including monitoring reports, records or reports of compliance or noncompliance, or 
falsifying, tampering with or knowingly rendering inaccurate any rnonitoring device or 
method required by this permit or violating any other requiretnent imposed by state or 
federal regulations. 

2. Test Procedures 

a. Unless otherwise specified in this permit, test procedures for the analysis of pollutants 
shall comply with procedures specified in 30 TAC §§ 319.11 - 319.12. Measurements, tests 
and calculations shall be accurately accomplished in a representative manner. 

b. All laboratory tests submitted to demonstrate compliance with this permit must meet the 
requirements of 3o TAC Chapter 25, Environmental Testing Laboratory Accreditation and 
Certification. 
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3. Records of Results 

a. Monitoring samples and measurements shall be taken at times and in a manner so as to 
be representative of the monitored activity. 

b. Except for records of monitoring information required by this permit related to the 
permittee's sewage sludge use and disposal activities, which shall be retained for a period 
of at least five years, monitoring and reporting records, including strip charts and records 
of calibration and maintenance, copies of all records required by this permit, and records 
of all data used to complete the application for this permit shall be retained at the facility 
site, or shall be readily available for review by a TCEQ representative for a period of three 
years from the date of the record or sample, measurement, report, or application. This 
period shall be extended at the request of the Executive Director. 

c, Records of monitoring activities shall include the following: 

i. date, time and place of sample or measurement; 
ii. identity of individual who collected the sample or made the measurement. 
iii. date and time of analysis; 
iv. identity of the individual and laboratory who performed the analysis; 
v. the technique or method of analysis; and 
vi. the results of the analysis or measurement and quality assurance/quality control 

records. 

The period during which records are required to be kept shall be automatically extended 
to the date of the final disposition of any administrative or judicial enforcement action 
that may be instituted against the permittee. 

4. Additional Monitoring by Permittee 

If the permittee monitors any pollutant at the location(s) designated herein more frequently 
than required by this permit using approved analytical methods as specified above, all 
results of such monitoring shall be included in determining cornpliance with permit 
requirements. 

5. Calibration of Instruments 

All automatic flow measuring or recording devices and all totalizing meters for measuring 
flows shall be accurately calibrated by a trained person at plant start-up and as often 
thereafter as necessary to ensure accuracy, but not less often than annually unless 
authorized by the Executive Director for a longer period. Such person shall verify in writing 
that the device is operating properly and giving accurate results. Copies of the verification 
shall be retained at the facility site and/or shall be readily available for review by a TCEQ 
representative for a period of three years. 

6. Compliance Schedule Reports 

Reports of compliance or noncompliance with, or any progress reports on, interim and final 
requirements contained in any compliance schedule of the permit shall be submitted no later 
than 14 days following each schedule date to the Regional Office and the Enforcement 
Division (MC 224). 
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7. 	Noncompliance Notification 

a. In accordance with 30 TAC § 305.125(9) any noncompliance which may endanger human 
health or safety, or the environment shall be reported by the permittee to the TCEQ. 
Except as allowed by 30 TAC § 305.132, report of such inforrnation shall be provided 
orally or by facsimile transmission (FAX) to the Regional Office within 24 hours of 
becoming aware of the noncompliance. A written submission of such information shall 
also be provided by the permittee to the Regional Office and the Enforcement Division 
(MC 224) within five working clays of becoming aware of the noncompliance. For Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works (POTWs), effective September 1, 2020, the permittee must 
submit the written report for unauthorized discharges and unanticipated bypasses that 
exceed any effluent limit in the permit using the online electronic reporting system 
available through the TCEQ website unless the permittee requests and obtains an 
electronic reporting waiver. The written submission shall contain a description of the 
noncompliance and its cause; the potential danger to human health or safety, or the 
environment; the period of noncompliance, including exact dates and times; if the 
noncompliance has not been corrected, the time it is expected to continue; and steps 
taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the noncompliance, and 
to mitigate its adverse effects. 

b. The following violations shall be reported under Monitoring and Reporting Requirement 
7.a.: 

i. Unauthorized discharges as defined in Permit Condition 2(g). 

ii. Any unanticipated bypass which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit. 

c. In addition to the above, any effluent violation which deviates from the permitted effluent 
limitation by more than 40% shall be reported by the permittee in writing to the Regional 
Office and the Enforcement Division (MC 224) within 5 working days of becoming aware 
of the noncompliance. 

d. Any noncompliance other than that specified in this section, or any required information 
not submitted or submitted incorrectly, shall be reported to the Enforcement Division 
(MC 224) as promptly as possible. 

8. In accordance with the procedures described in 30 TAC §§ 35.301 - 35.303 (relating to Water 
Quality Emergency and Temporary Orders) if the permittee knows in advance of the need 
for a bypass, it shall submit prior notice by applying for such authorization. 

9. 	Changes in Discharges of Toxic Substances 

All existing manufacturing, commercial, mining, and silvicultural permittees shall notify the 
Regional Office, orally or by facsimile transmission within 24 hours, and both the Regional 
Office and the Enforcement Division (MC 224) in writing within five (5) working days, after 
becoming aware of or having reason to believe: 

a. That any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in the discharge, on a 
routine or frequent basis, of any toxic pollutant listed at 40 CFR Part 122, Appendix D, 
Tables II and III (excluding Total Phenols) which is not limited in the permit, if that 
discharge will exceed the highest of the following "notification levels": 
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